
Page 1 of 5 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

Board of Supervisors’ Chambers, 70 West Hedding Street, First Floor  
San Jose, CA 95110 

 
APRIL 5, 2023 ▪ 1:15 PM  

AGENDA  
Chairperson: Susan Vicklund Wilson  

PUBLIC ACCESS AND PARTICPATION   
This meeting will be held in person at the location listed above. Currently, members of 
the public may also attend by virtual teleconference. To attend the meeting by virtual 
teleconference, access the meeting at https://sccgov-org.zoom.us/j/94707905179 or 
by dialing (669) 900-6833 and entering Meeting ID 947 0790 5179# when prompted.  

PUBLIC COMMENT INSTRUCTIONS 
Written Public Comments may be submitted by email to LAFCO@ceo.sccgov.org. 
Written comments will be distributed to the Commission as quickly as possible. Please 
note that documents may take up to 24 hours to be posted to the agenda on the 
LAFCO website. 
Spoken public comments may be provided in-person at the meeting. Persons 
who wish to address the Commission on an item are requested to complete a 
Request to Speak Form and place it in the designted tray near the dias. Request to 
Speak Forms must be submitted prior to the start of public comment for the desired 
item. For items on the Consent Calendar or items added to the Consent Calendar, 
Request to Speak Forms must be submitted prior to the call for public comment on the 
Consent Calendar. Individual speakers will be called to speak in turn. Speakers are 
requested to limit their comments to the time limit alloted.  
Spoken public comments may also be provided through the teleconference 
meeting. To address the Commission virtually, click on the link https://sccgov-
org.zoom.us/j/-94707905179 to access the meeting and follow the instructions below:  

• You will be asked to enter an email address and name. We request that you 
identify yourself by name as this will be visible online and will be used to notify 
you when it is your turn to speak.  

• When the Chairperson calls for the item on which you wish to speak, click on 
“raise hand” icon. The Clerk will activate and unmute speakers in turn. 
Speakers will be notified shortly before they are called to speak. Call-in 
attendees press *9 to request to speak, and *6 to unmute when prompted.  

• When called to speak, please limit your remarks to the time limit allotted. 

https://sccgov-org.zoom.us/j/94707905179
mailto:LAFCO@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:LAFCO@ceo.sccgov.org
https://sccgov-org.zoom.us/j/-94707905179
https://sccgov-org.zoom.us/j/-94707905179


 

 
 

PAGE 2 of 5 

 
 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

1. Pursuant to Government Code §84308, no LAFCO commissioner shall accept, solicit, or 
direct a contribution of more than $250 from any party, or his/her agent; or any participant 
or his /or her agent, while a LAFCO proceeding is pending, and for three months following 
the date a final decision is rendered by LAFCO. Prior to rendering a decision on a LAFCO 
proceeding, any LAFCO commissioner who received a contribution of more than $250 
within the preceding 12 months from a party or participant shall disclose that fact on the 
record of the proceeding. If a commissioner receives a contribution which would otherwise 
require disqualification returns the contribution within 30 days of knowing about the 
contribution and the proceeding, the commissioner shall be permitted to participate in the 
proceeding. A party to a LAFCO proceeding shall disclose on the record of the proceeding 
any contribution of more than $250 within the preceding 12 months by the party, or his or 
her agent, to a LAFCO commissioner. For forms, visit the LAFCO website at 
www.santaclaralafco.org. No party, or his or her agent and no participant, or his or her 
agent, shall make a contribution of more than $250 to any LAFCO commissioner during the 
proceeding or for 3 months following the date a final decision is rendered by LAFCO. 

2. Pursuant to Government Code Sections 56100.1, 56300, 56700.1, 57009 and 81000 et 
seq., any person or combination of persons who directly or indirectly contribute(s) a total of 
$1,000 or more or expend(s) a total of $1,000 or more in support of or in opposition to 
specified LAFCO proposals or proceedings, which generally include proposed 
reorganizations or changes of organization, may be required to comply with the disclosure 
requirements of the Political Reform Act (See also, Section 84250 et seq.). These 
requirements contain provisions for making disclosures of contributions and expenditures at 
specified intervals. More information on the scope of the required disclosures is available at 
the web site of the FPPC: www.fppc.ca.gov. Questions regarding FPPC material, including 
FPPC forms, should be directed to the FPPC’s advice line at 1-866-ASK-FPPC (1-866-275- 
3772). 

3. Pursuant to Government Code §56300(c), LAFCO adopted lobbying disclosure 
requirements which require that any person or entity lobbying the Commission or Executive 
Officer in regard to an application before LAFCO must file a declaration prior to the hearing 
on the LAFCO application or at the time of the hearing if that is the initial contact. In 
addition to submitting a declaration, any lobbyist speaking at the LAFCO hearing must so 
identify themselves as lobbyists and identify on the record the name of the person or entity 
making payment to them. Additionally, every applicant shall file a declaration under penalty 
of perjury listing all lobbyists that they have hired to influence the action taken by LAFCO 
on their application. For forms, visit the LAFCO website at www.santaclaralafco.org. 

4. Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on the agenda and 
distributed to all or a majority of the Commissioners less than 72 hours prior to that meeting 
are available for public inspection at the LAFCO Office, 777 North First Street, Suite 410, 
San Jose, California, during normal business hours. (Government Code §54957.5.) 

5. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodation for 
this meeting should notify the LAFCO Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting at (408) 993- 
4705. 

 
 

http://www.santaclaralafco.org/
http://www.santaclaralafco.org/
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/
http://www.santaclaralafco.org/


 

 
 

PAGE 3 of 5 

 

1. ROLL CALL 

2. LAFCO MEMBERSHIP CHANGES 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

This portion of the meeting provides an opportunity for members of the public to address 
the Commission on matters not on the agenda, provided that the subject matter is within 
the jurisdiction of the Commission. No action may be taken on off- agenda items unless 
authorized by law. Speakers are limited to THREE minutes. All statements that require a 
response will be referred to staff for reply in writing. 
 

4. APPROVE CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Consent Calendar includes Agenda Items marked with an asterisk (*). The 
Commission may add to or remove agenda items from the Consent Calendar.  
All items that remain on the Consent Calendar are voted on in one motion. If an item is 
approved on the Consent Calendar, the specific action recommended by staff is adopted. 
Members of the public who wish to address the Commission on Consent Calendar items 
should comment under this item.  

*5. APPROVE MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 1, 2023 LAFCO MEETING  

PUBLIC HEARING 

6. GILROY URBAN SERVICE AREA AMENDMENT 2021 (WREN INVESTORS & HEWELL) 

Proposal to expand Gilroy’s urban service area to include two areas: Area A, 
approximately 50.3 acres, is located west of Wren Avenue and south of Vickery Avenue 
and includes 13 parcels (APNs 790- 09- 006, 008, 009, 010, 011; 790- 17- 001, 004, 005, 
006, 007, 008, 009 and 010); and Area B, approximately 5.36 acres, is located northeast 
of Vickery Lane and Kern Avenue and includes two parcels (APNs 790-06-017 and 018). 

Option 1 - Staff Recommendation:  

1a. Deny the proposed City of Gilroy Urban Service Area Amendment 2021 (Wren 
Investors & Hewell). 

1b. Denial of the project does not require a CEQA Action. 

Option 2 - Other Option for Commission Consideration: 

2a.  Approve the proposed City of Gilroy Urban Service Area Amendment 2021 (Wren 
Investors & Hewell). 

2b. In order to approve the project, LAFCO as a Responsible Agency under CEQA, must 
take the following actions regarding the Mitigated Negative Declaration for this 
project:  

• Find that the Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration approved by 
the City of Gilroy on January 27, 2021 were completed in compliance with 



 

 
 

PAGE 4 of 5 

CEQA and are an adequate discussion of the environmental impacts of the 
project 

• Find that prior to making a decision on this project, LAFCO reviewed and 
considered the environmental effects of the project as outlined in the Initial 
Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration. 

• Find that the City of Gilroy submitted a mitigation monitoring program and 
that the monitoring program ensures compliance with the mitigation 
measures identified in the Mitigated Negative Declaration that would 
eliminate or reduce significant adverse environmental effects to less than 
significant levels, associated with the Urban Service Area expansion over 
which LAFCO has responsibility. 

7. PROPOSED WORK PLAN AND BUDGET FOR FY 2024 

Recommended Action:  

1. Adopt the Proposed Work Plan for Fiscal Year 2023-2024.  

2. Adopt the Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024.  

3. Find that the Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2024 is expected to be adequate to 
allow the Commission to fulfill its statutory responsibilities.  

4. Authorize staff to transmit the Proposed Budget adopted by the Commission 
including the estimated agency costs as well as the LAFCO public hearing notice for 
the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2024 Final Budget to the cities, the special districts, 
the County, the Cities Association of Santa Clara County and the Santa Clara County 
Special Districts Association. 

ITEMS FOR ACTION / INFORMATION 

8. APPOINTMENT OF PUBLIC MEMBER AND ALTERNATE PUBLIC MEMBER 

Recommended Action: Interview, select, and appoint a public member and an alternate 
public member to LAFCO, to each serve a four-year term from June 2023 through May 
2027. 

9. UPDATE ON COUNTYWIDE FIRE SERVICE REVIEW 

Recommended Action:  

1. Appoint one LAFCO Commissioner to serve on the Countywide Fire Service Review 
Technical Advisory Committee in place of Commissioner Vicklund Wilson, whose 
term on LAFCO ends May 31, 2023.  

2. Accept report and provide direction, as necessary.  

 

 



 

 
 

PAGE 5 of 5 

*10. AMENDMENT TO MOU BETWEEN COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA AND LAFCO OF SANTA 
CLARA REGARDING WEBCASTING SERVICES FOR LAFCO MEETINGS 

Recommended Action: Approve the proposed amendment to the Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) between County of Santa Clara and LAFCO of Santa Clara regarding 
the County’s provision of webcasting services for LAFCO meetings held in the County 
Board Chambers, extending the term, and updating the rates for reimbursable expenses. 

11. EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

Recommended Action: Accept report and provide direction, as necessary. 

11.1 Update on LAFCO Clerk Recruitment 
11.2 Presentation on LAFCO to Santa Clara Valley Open Space Authority    
11.3 Meeting on Bay Area People’s Food & Farm Project 
11.4 Special Districts Association Meeting 
11.5 Laserfische Server Migration Services 

12. APPOINTMENT OF 2023 LAFCO CHAIRPERSON AND VICE-CHAIRPERSON 

Recommended Action: Appoint a commissioner to serve as Chairperson for 2023 and 
appoint a commissioner to serve as Vice-Chairperson for 2023. 

13. PENDING APPLICATIONS / UPCOMING PROJECTS 

14. COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

15. NEWSPAPER ARTICLES / NEWSLETTERS 

16. WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE 

• A letter from Burbank SanitaryDistrict re. Burbank Annexaton 44, 1881 West San 
Carlos, APNs 274-16-050, 052, 053, 069 and 070 – March 28, 2023 City Council 
Agenda (March 21, 2023) 

17. ADJOURN 

Adjourn to the regular LAFCO meeting on June 7, 2023 at 1:15 PM in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Chambers, 70 West Hedding Street, San Jose. 





PAGE 1 OF 2 

LAFCO MEETING: April 5, 2023 
TO: LAFCO 
FROM: Neelima Palacherla, Executive Officer 

Dunia Noel, Asst. Executive Officer 
SUBJECT: LAFCO MEMBERSHIP CHANGES 

FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

In mid-February 2023, LAFCO welcomed two new alternate commissioners and one 
regular commissioner, as discussed in greater detail below.  

WELCOME NEW COMMISSIONERS 

Russ Melton (appointed by the City Selection Committee) 
On February 9, 2023, the City Selection Committee appointed Russ Melton 
(Councilmember, City of Sunnyvale) to serve as regular member on LAFCO. 
Commissioner Melton replaces former Commissioner Rich Constantine, whose term 
as Morgan Hill’s Mayor ended in December 2022. Commissioner Melton will 
complete former Commissioner Constantine’s remaining four-year term on LAFCO 
which is set to expire May 31, 2024. Prior to this new appointment, Commissioner 
Melton served as an alternate member on LAFCO, beginning in February 2017. 

Mark Turner (appointed by the City Selection Committee) 
On February 9, 2023, the City Selection Committee appointed Mark Turner (Mayor, 
City of Morgan Hill) to serve as alternate member on LAFCO. Alternate 
Commissioner Turner replaces former Alternate Commissioner Melton, who was 
recently appointed as regular member on LAFCO. Alternate Commissioner Turner 
will complete former Alternate Commissioner Melton’s remaining four-year term on 
LAFCO which is set to expire May 31, 2024. 

Domingo Candelas (appointed by the City of San Jose) 
In mid-February 2023, the City of San Jose appointed Domingo Candelas 
(Councilmember, City of San Jose) to serve as the alternate member on LAFCO. 
Alternate Commissioner Candelas replaces former Alternate Commissioner Mahan. 
Alternate Commissioner Candelas will complete former Alternate Commissioner 
Mahan’s remaining four-year term on LAFCO which is set to expire on May 31, 2024. 

ITEM # 2 



 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

 

 

LAFCO ORIENTATION PROGRAM 

LAFCO staff conducts an orientation program to educate incoming commissioners 
on the history and purpose of LAFCO, its State mandate, the role of commissioners 
and staff; and Santa Clara LAFCO’s key planning boundaries, regulatory and 
planning tools, application review process, service reviews program, decision-
making process, policies and procedures, outreach and collaboration efforts, and 
current/upcoming projects. Staff conducted an orientation session for Alternate 
Commissioner Candelas on March 20, 2023 and will conduct an orientation session  
for Alternate Commissioner Turner on April 3, 2023. 
 



PAGE 1 OF 6 

ITEM # 5 

LAFCO MEETING MINUTES 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2023 

CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order at 1:15 p.m. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Government Code section 54953(e), this meeting was 
held by teleconference only.  

1. ROLL CALL
The following commissioners were present:

• Chairperson Susan Vicklund Wilson
• Commissioner Sylvia Arenas
• Commissioner Jim Beall
• Commissioner Rosemary Kamei
• Commissioner Yoriko Kishimoto
• Commissioner Otto Lee
• Alternate Commissioner Helen Chapman
• Alternate Commissioner Russ Melton (voting in place of the cities member

due to vacant cities position)
• Alternate Commissioner Terry Trumbull

The following commissioners was absent: 
• Alternate Commissioner Cindy Chavez

The following staff members were present:
• Neelima Palacherla, LAFCO Executive Officer
• Dunia Noel, LAFCO Assistant Executive Officer
• Emmanuel Abello, Associate Analyst
• Mala Subramanian, LAFCO Counsel

2. LAFCO MEMBERSHIP CHANGES
Chairperson Vicklund Wilson welcomed Commissioners Sylvia Arenas, Jim Beall,
Rosemary Kamei and Otto Lee. She announced that there are vacancies for the cities
member and City of San Jose alternate member, which would be appointed shortly.

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS
There were none.



 
 
 

PAGE 2 OF 6 
  
 
 

4. APPROVE CONSENT CALENDAR 
Chairperson Vicklund Wilson proposed to add Items #5, #9 and #14.1 to the 
consent calendar.  

Chairperson Vicklund Wilson determined that there are no members of the public 
who would like to speak on the item. 

Commissioners Kamei and Lee expressed support for approval of the consent 
calendar but stated they would abstain on Item #5 as they were not present at that 
time.  

Ms. Palacherla informed that Alternate Commissioner Melton is present and will be 
voting in place of the vacant cities seat. 

The Commission approved the consent calendar, with Commissioners Kamei and Lee 
abstaining on Item #5. 

Motion: Kishimoto   Second: Melton 

AYES: Arenas, Beall, Kamei, Kishimoto, Lee, Melton, Vicklund Wilson 

NOES: None               ABSTAIN: None   ABSENT: None 

MOTION PASSED   

*5. CONSENT ITEM: APPROVE MINUTES OF DECEMBER 7, 2022 LAFCO 
MEETING  
The Commission approved the minutes of December 7, 2022 meeting, with 
Commissioners Kamei and Lee abstaining.  

*6. CONSENT ITEM: RESOLUTION 2023-01 ALLOWING FOR VIDEO AND 
TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS DURING COVID-19 STATE OF EMERGENCY 
UNDER GC §54953(e) 
The Commission adopted Resolution No. 2023-01 allowing for video and 
teleconferencing meetings during COVID-19 State of Emergency under GC 
§54953(e). 

7. GILROY URBAN SERVICE AREA AMENDMENT 2021 (WREN INVESTORS & 
HEWELL) 
Chairperson Vicklund Wilson determined that there are no members of the public 
who would like to speak on the item.  

Commissioner Arenas lost internet connection and was unable to indicate her vote, 
and Ms. Subramanian advised that no vote will be entered. 

The Commission continued the public hearing on the Gilroy Urban Service Area 
Amendment 2021 (Wren Investors & Hewell) to the April 5, 2023 LAFCO meeting. 

Motion: Melton    Second: Kishimoto 



 
 
 

PAGE 3 OF 6 
  
 
 

AYES: Beall, Kamei, Kishimoto, Lee, Melton, Vicklund Wilson 

NOES: None               ABSTAIN: Arenas   ABSENT: None 

MOTION PASSED   

8. GUEST SPEAKER – LAFCO’S PAST, PRESENT AND FUTURE 
Chairperson Vicklund Wilson introduced the guest speaker, Mr. Don Weden. Mr. 
Weden made a PowerPoint presentation on LAFCO’s Past, Present and Future. 

Chairperson Vicklund Wilson determined that there are no members of the public 
who would like to speak on the item. 

Chairperson Vicklund Wilson expressed appreciation to Mr. Weden for the 
informative presentation. She proposed that the Commission hold a retreat 
considering that LAFCO’s membership has changed significantly, and she suggested 
that Mr. Weden be invited to make a presentation at that time.  

Commissioner Lee agreed and stated that he learned a lot about LAFCO history and 
would like a copy of the slides. Commissioner Melton expressed agreement and 
informed that he attended Mr. Weden’s presentation at a LAFCO retreat about five 
years ago, and it is relevant today as it was then. He agreed that there is a need for a 
retreat and proposed that it could be held in the Fall. 

*9. CONSENT ITEM: APPOINTMENT OF 2023 LAFCO CHAIRPERSON AND 
VICE-CHAIRPERSON 
The Commission continued the appointment of 2023 Chairperson and Vice-
Chairperson to the April 5, 2023 LAFCO meeting to allow for LAFCO to have a fully 
seated Commission. 

10. UPDATE ON COUNTYWIDE FIRE SERVICE REVIEW 
Ms. Noel presented the staff report. 

In response to Commissioner Beall, Ms. Noel informed that the consultant is closely 
coordinating with CalFire and that while the agency is not on the TAC, it is 
represented in the fire service review process since it has contracts with some of the 
jurisdictions in the county for fire services. Commissioner Beall informed that the 
State has urban forestry management grants for open space districts and fire safe 
councils. He proposed exploring application for a grant to fund fire safety planning. 
Ms. Noel thanked Commissioner Beall and indicated that fire safe councils play a 
significant role. Commissioner Kishimoto indicated that the grant can be used for 
fire prevention work of fire agencies. She also expressed that her interest with 
regards to wildland urban interface, and noted that she will have questions on that 
topic at the next TAC meeting.  

Cody Einfalt, Management Analyst, Town of Los Altos Hills, inquired about the 
agency profiles being prepared by AP Triton. In response, Ms. Palacherla informed 



 
 
 

PAGE 4 OF 6 
  
 
 

that AP Triton is preparing profiles of fire agencies and city fire departments, and 
since Los Altos Hills is served by the Los Altos Hills County Fire District, the 
information will be captured in the District’s profile.     

Chairperson Vicklund Wilson determined that there are no members of the public 
who would like to speak on the item. 

The Commission accepted the report. 

Motion: Melton    Second: Lee 

AYES: Arenas, Beall, Kamei, Kishimoto, Lee, Melton, Vicklund Wilson 

NOES: None               ABSTAIN: None   ABSENT: None 

MOTION PASSED   

11. FINANCE COMMITTEE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
Ms. Noel presented the staff report. 

Chairperson Vicklund Wilson determined that there are no members of the public 
who would like to speak on the item. 

Commissioner Melton offered to serve on the Finance Committee. He encouraged 
other members to serve on the Committee as the work on LAFCO’s annual work plan 
will help members understand more how LAFCO operates, its service reviews and 
other projects, and how the agency is funded. Commissioner Beall likewise offered 
to serve.  

In response to an inquiry by Chairperson Vicklund Wilson, Ms. Palacherla advised 
that Commissioner Melton is a cities’ appointee and Commissioner Beall is a special 
districts appointee, and she stated that an alternate or a county member may also 
serve on the Committee. Ms. Noel also indicated that the Committee may only need to 
meet once or twice.  

Alternate Commissioner Chapman offered to serve on the Committee. 

The Commission established the Finance Committee composed of Commissioner 
Melton, Commissioner Beall and Alternate Commissioner Chapman to work with 
staff to develop and recommend the proposed FY 2023-2024 LAFCO work plan and 
budget for consideration by the full commission. 

Motion: Melton    Second: Kishimoto 

AYES: Arenas, Beall, Kamei, Kishimoto, Lee, Melton, Vicklund Wilson 

NOES: None               ABSTAIN: None   ABSENT: None 

MOTION PASSED   



 
 
 

PAGE 5 OF 6 
  
 
 

12. INITIATE PROCESS TO SELECT AND APPOINT PUBLIC MEMBER AND 
ALTERNATE PUBLIC MEMBER DUE TO UPCOMING TERM EXPIRATION 
Ms. Palacherla presented the staff report. 

Chairperson Vicklund Wilson determined that there are no members of the public 
who would like to speak on the item. 

The Commission directed staff to initiate process in accordance with the LAFCO 
Bylaws that would enable the Commission to select and appoint a public member 
and an alternate public member at the April 5, 2023 LAFCO meeting. 

Motion: Kishimoto    Second: Melton 

AYES: Arenas, Beall, Kamei, Kishimoto, Lee, Melton, Vicklund Wilson 

NOES: None               ABSTAIN: None   ABSENT: None 

MOTION PASSED   

13. EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
The Commission accepted the report. 

Motion: Melton    Second: Lee 

AYES: Arenas, Beall, Kamei, Kishimoto, Lee, Melton, Vicklund Wilson 

NOES: None               ABSTAIN: None   ABSENT: None 

MOTION PASSED   
13.1 Update on LAFCO Clerk Recruitment 
13.2 Presentation on LAFCO to Leadership Sunnyvale 
13.3 Midpeninsula Regional Open Space District 50th Anniversary Partner 

Reception 
13.4 Special Districts Association Meeting 

14. CALAFCO RELATED ACTIVITIES 
*14.1 CONSENT ITEM: 2023 CALAFCO Staff Workshop 

The Commission authorized staff to attend the 2023 CALAFCO Staff Workshop and 
authorized travel expenses funded by the LAFCO budget. 

15. PENDING APPLICATIONS / UPCOMING PROJECTS 

16.  COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

17.  NEWSPAPER ARTICLES / NEWSLETTERS 
• CALAFCO Quarterly – December 2022 



 
 
 

PAGE 6 OF 6 
  
 
 

18.  WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE 

19. CLOSED SESSION: PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
The Commission adjourned to Closed Session at 2:45 p.m.  

20. REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 
Chairperson Vicklund Wilson reconvened the meeting at 3:10 p.m. Ms. 
Subramanian stated that there is no reportable action from the Closed Session. 

21. ADJOURN 
The Commission adjourned at 3:11 p.m., to the next regular LAFCO meeting on April 
5, 2023, at 1:15 p.m., in the Board of Supervisors’ Chambers, 70 West Hedding Street, 
San Jose.  

 
 
Approved on April 5, 2023. 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Susan Vicklund Wilson, Chairperson 
Local Agency Formation Commission of Santa Clara County 
 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
Emmanuel Abello, LAFCO Clerk 



 

ITEM # 6 
 

 

 

 

 

GILROY URBAN SERVICE AREA AMENDMENT 2021  
(WREN INVESTORS & HEWELL) 

 

 

STAFF REPORT  

The staff report for this item was published on the LAFCO website on March 10, 2023 and a 
notice of availability was emailed to LAFCO commissioners, the applicant and those on the 
LAFCO meeting agenda mailing list. 

See: https://santaclaralafco.org/sites/default/files/Wren_Hewell_USA_Amendment.pdf. 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

The following comment letter was received: 

• Supplemental Information No. 1 - A letter from the Santa Clara Valley Open Space 
Authority (OSA)  

 

Comment letters received after this date will be provided to the Commission in another 
supplemental packet. 

 

https://santaclaralafco.org/sites/default/files/Wren_Hewell_USA_Amendment.pdf




33 Las Colinas Lane 
San Jose, CA 95119 

408.224.7476 T 

408.224.7548 F 
openspaceauthority.org 

March 31, 2023 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Santa Clara County 
777 North First Street 
Suite 410 
San Jose, CA 95112 

RE:  Gilroy Urban Service Area Amendment 2021 (Wren Investors & Hewell)

Dear Ms. Palacherla, 

The Santa Clara Valley Open Space Authority is writing in support of the Staff Recommended 
Action to deny the proposed City of Gilroy Urban Service Area Amendment 2021 (Wren 
Investors & Hewell) (Project). We have reviewed the Project documents and agree with the 
analysis and determination made by LAFCO staff that this USA Amendment is unnecessary and 
inconsistent with regional policy concerning urban growth. Further, we believe the Project’s 
negative impacts to agricultural resources should be considered for this and future USA 
annexation proposals.  

Santa Clara Valley Open Space Authority (Authority) 

The Santa Clara Valley Open Space Authority (Authority) is a public, independent special district 
created by the California State Legislature in 1993 at the urging of community leaders who saw 
the importance of maintaining the ecological integrity of the region. The Authority works to 
conserve the natural environment and open spaces, connect people to nature, and preserve 
working farms and ranches for future generations. Since the Authority’s founding in 1993, it has 
protected nearly 30,000 acres of land through fee acquisition, conservation easements, 
contributions to partner projects, and management agreements.  

Santa Clara County Agricultural Plan 

The Authority is one of the few agencies in Santa Clara County responsible for conserving 
agricultural land and prioritizes the protection of vulnerable South County farmland. The County 
has lost over 21,000 acres of farmland and rangeland to development in the past 30 years and 
an additional 28,000 acres are deemed at risk. In January of 2018 the Santa Clara County Board 
of Supervisors adopted the Santa Clara Valley Agricultural Plan (SCVAP), a regional effort led by 

Supplemental Information No. 1 
ITEM # 6



the Authority and the County of Santa Clara and funded through the California Department of 
Conservation (DOC) Sustainable Agricultural Lands Conservation Program. The SCVAP outlined 
farmland conservation strategies to support the social and economic benefits of agriculture 
within Santa Clara County, limit the conversion of agricultural land and minimize the impacts of 
climate change. 

The SCVAP identified the Santa Clara Valley Agricultural Resource Area (ARA), a region for 
focused agricultural conservation efforts which encompasses priority farmland in South County. 
The Project is located within the Buena Vista ARA sub-area, a distinct landscape between San 
Martin and Gilroy with unique farming characteristics. The Buena Vista sub-area is important to 
continued agricultural viability in South County for the large farming parcels on which row crop 
cultivation, farmers markets, and niche farming occur. Farmlands within this area are some of 
the greatest at risk for development and critical for regional agricultural conservation. The 
Authority addresses conversion threats within the ARA through acquiring voluntary 
conservation easements, leasing Authority holdings to farmers and grazers, and supporting 
policy initiatives which protect viable farmland.  

Project impacts to agricultural resources 

Agricultural resources in the DOC’s Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program (FMMP) are 
identified by land use and soil type. Between 2010 – 2016, Prime Farmland or Farmland of 
Statewide Importance within the Project area was reclassified to Grazing Lands. Soil can fall out 
of Important Farmland designation if the land has not been actively irrigated during the prior 
four years, but the soil quality may retain its resource potential. Soil capacity is more accurately 
captured using the USDA’s Soil Survey Geographic Database (SSURGO) dataset. Recent SSURGO 
data indicates soil within the Project area includes 38 acres of Farmland of Statewide 
Importance and 15 acres of Prime Farmland if irrigated and/or protected from flooding. This 
data more accurately reflects the high farmland potential to better assess impacts to agricultural 
resources. Additionally, 2018 FMMP data reclassified 37 acres within the Project area to 
Farmland of Local Importance, indicating the land has significance to the local agricultural 
economy. This designation, as adopted by the Santa Clara County Board of Supervisors, includes 
undeveloped lands mapped as Important Farmland in the past and reflects the capacity for 
future agricultural production.  

It is clear that continued loss of viable farmland in Santa Clara County remains a critical issue for 
the community and policymakers. Contending influences within the rural-urban interface 
creates a unique challenge for Santa Clara County farmers. Landowner investment in farmland 
or agricultural operations may cease in anticipation of development potential, causing more 
farmland to fall out of Important Farmland designation. As noted in the SCVAP, most agricultural 
conversions are associated with city annexations in South County. The Authority echoes LAFCO 
staff assessment that expansion of urban services and infrastructure as part of a future 
residential development may threaten the surrounding unincorporated area. Less than a quarter 
mile north of the Project area is a large block of contiguous Prime Farmland which may be 
susceptible to the effects of urban sprawl. To prevent further loss of Important Farmland, the 
Authority supports LAFCO Policies to encourage development within the USA before considering 



annexation requests. Moreover, by promoting compact development in established 
communities there is less development pressure on the region’s open spaces and agricultural 
lands. 

Regional policies for urban growth 

The Authority promotes sustainable growth policy to promote infill development and reduce 

urban sprawl, climate emissions, and conversion of vulnerable agricultural lands and open 

space. USA annexation of the Project area would conflict with regional objectives for sustainable 

growth as outlined in policies such as Plan Bay Area 2050, the County General Plan, and the 

SCVAP.  

Plan Bay Area 2050 charted a course for reducing per-capita GHG emissions through the 
promotion of compact mixed-use development near transit stations, existing urban areas, and 
within designated Priority Development Areas (PDAs) outside of natural and working lands. 
Productive farmlands are critical for sustaining local and regional food systems while providing 
valuable ecosystem benefits to surrounding communities. Prioritizing urban infill projects within 
an existing USA helps maintain these benefits through alleviating development pressure on 
urban edge agricultural resources. LAFCO staff have identified that developing near the City’s 
edge would likely divert resources from infill development in areas like Downtown Gilroy, a 
current PDA, and would be inconsistent with County General Plan policy supporting infill 
development. 

Successful implementation of the SCVAP and regional agricultural conservation goals relies on 
smart urban growth policy to ensure that productive farmland soils within the ARA are 
protected from conversion. The Authority agrees with LAFCO Staff Recommendation to deny the 
proposed Project and reinforces the importance of protecting our rural regions and agricultural 
resources within South County.  

Thank you for the opportunity to review and support this LAFCO Project Action. 

Sincerely, 

Andrea Mackenzie 
General Manager  

CC: Open Space Authority Board of Directors 
Santa Clara County LAFCo Commissioners 
Matt Freeman, Assistant General Manager, OSA 
Marc Landgraf, External Affairs Manager, OSA





Supplemental Information No. 2 
ITEM # 6  

The following letters were received: 

1. A request from the City of Gilroy for the continuance of the public hearing to June 7,
2023 (April 4, 2023)

2. Joint comment letter from CLEAN South Bay, Green Foothills, Greenbelt Alliance and
Sierra Club Loma Prieta Chapter (April 3, 2023)





From: Cindy McCormick
To: Palacherla, Neelima; Noel, Dunia; Abello, Emmanuel
Cc: Sharon Goei
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Continuance request
Date: Tuesday, April 4, 2023 10:22:21 AM
Attachments: image001.png
Importance: High

Good Morning Neelima –
 

The City of Gilroy respectfully requests a continuance of the April 5th LAFCo hearing to June 7th 2023.
 Additional time is needed to review the LAFCo staff report and to recent letters from the Open
Space Authority and the joint letter from CLEAN South Bay, Green Foothills, Greenbelt Alliance, and
Sierra Club Loma Prieta Chapter.
 
Thank you!
 
CINDY MCCORMICK
CUSTOMER SERVICE MANAGER
Direct 408.846.0253 l  Cindy.McCormick@cityofgi lroy.org
Main   408.846.0440 l  www.cityofgi lroy.org/planning
7351 Rosanna Street |  Gi lroy |  CA 95020
 

 

mailto:Cindy.McCormick@ci.gilroy.ca.us
mailto:Neelima.Palacherla@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:Emmanuel.Abello@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:Sharon.Goei@ci.gilroy.ca.us
mailto:Cindy.McCormick@cityofgilroy.org
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.cityofgilroy.org/planning__;!!P4LiPV1inDXhLQ!3yBDUei3J8UD-q1jqx-Zcu9VoAcPGgcXgDQh5HWki0M1U0pG0_1QXV9Clc9aaPmmBMhr-ak_DMqvaSHmva9naySV8ThJ-qwt8PAoRSs_2A$

Oilroy.







1

From: Alice Kaufman <alice@greenfoothills.org>
Sent: Monday, April 3, 2023 5:02 PM
To: LAFCO; Arenas, Sylvia; Supervisor.Lee; JBeall@valleywater.org; Jim Beall; 

rosemary.kamei@sanjoseca.gov; Yoriko Kishimoto; MeltonCouncil; Susan@svwilsonlaw.com
Cc: McGarrity, Patrick; Osorio, Michelle; david.gomez; Omar Din; joseph.fruen@sanjoseca.gov; Jordan 

Grimes; James Eggers; Trish Mulvey; Palacherla, Neelima; Noel, Dunia
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Gilroy Urban Service Area (USA) Amendment 2021 (Wren Investors & Hewell) - Item 6, 

4/5/23 agenda
Attachments: Joint enviro orgs letter - LAFCO Gilroy USA Amendment.pdf

.Dear LAFCO Commissioners, 

Please find attached a joint letter urging denial of the proposed Gilroy USA Amendment, signed by the following 
environmental organizations: 

 CLEAN South Bay
 Green Foothills
 Greenbelt Alliance
 Sierra Club Loma Prieta Chapter

Thank you for your consideration of these comments. 

Alice Kaufman (She/Her) 
Policy and Advocacy Director 
Green Foothills | (650) 968-7243 x313 | greenfoothills.org 
Join the movement for local nature. Sign up for alerts. 



April 3, 2023

Local Agency Formation Commission of Santa Clara County
777 North First Street
Suite 410
San Jose, CA 95112

RE: Gilroy Urban Service Area Amendment 2021 (Wren Investors & Hewell)

Dear LAFCO Commissioners,

Please accept these comments on behalf of the undersigned organizations with regard to the
Gilroy Urban Service Area (USA) Amendment. We are nonprofit environmental organizations
with thousands of supporters in Santa Clara County. We strongly support the staff
recommendation and urge you to deny the proposed Gilroy USA Amendment.

The Gilroy USA Amendment is a textbook example of unwise sprawl development. It would
expand Gilroy’s urban service area to allow new residential development on agricultural land
outside the City, when Gilroy still has years of available residential land for infill development. In
addition, Gilroy has not shown that the City is able to adequately provide services such as fire
and police protection, wastewater treatment and road maintenance. For these reasons, the
Gilroy USA Amendment should be denied.

Approving the Gilroy USA Amendment Would Facilitate Sprawl

LAFCOs were created by the State of California in 1963 in response to the runaway sprawl
development that was rampant throughout the state at that time, including in Santa Clara
County. This sprawl development not only obliterated farmland and open space, but resulted in
poor infrastructure and inadequate provision of services. Cities were unable to adequately
provide for and maintain all the land that they had annexed. The results of this lack of planning
can be felt today in some cities that still suffer the fiscal impacts of having annexed many square
miles of land for residential development that is now costly to service.

LAFCOs are charged with preventing this kind of unwise and costly sprawl development.
Annexations and expansions of urban service areas are reviewed by LAFCOs, which are



required to ensure that cities promote compact urban infill growth by not approving any
annexations or USA expansions if there is still an adequate supply of available land within the
urban footprint for new development (including redevelopment of underutilized parcels). In
addition, LAFCOs have the responsibility of judging whether cities will be able to adequately
provide urban services to areas proposed to be brought within the USA. Finally, LAFCOs are
required to protect farmland by preventing premature conversion of agricultural lands.

The proposed Gilroy USA Amendment is contrary to both the specific requirements and the
broad policy basis of LAFCO. Preventing sprawl and promoting urban infill development go
hand in hand. The City should be focusing its development in its downtown, transit-oriented
areas, not only because there is an 8-year supply of vacant or underutilized residential land
already available within the USA, but also because climate resilience and principles of smart
growth demand it. Enabling low-density development on a city’s edge, as the Gilroy USA
Amendment would do, is the exact opposite of climate-resilient growth.

The Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) process emphasizes equity and affirmatively
furthering fair housing. This type of low-density sprawl development (the City’s proposed zoning
would allow 3 DU/acre on the majority of the site) is contrary to these goals.

It is important to note that once these parcels are brought within the city’s USA, LAFCO
approval will not be required for annexation into the city. Thus, the present USA amendment is
the only opportunity for LAFCO to consider whether annexation is appropriate or timely.

The Gilroy USA Amendment Risks Worsening Existing Service Problems

It is LAFCO’s responsibility to assess whether the City is able to provide urban services to the
subject parcels without detracting from current service levels. In this case, Gilroy’s urban
services are already impacted in several areas, and further straining those services is likely to
worsen those existing problems. These areas include:

Fire and police protection services. The 2019 Master Plan Update by the Gilroy Fire
Department found that call processing/dispatch performance is more than 72% slower than best
practice standards, and that first-due call-to-arrival performance is significantly slower than best
practices to achieve desired outcomes to keep small fires small and to provide lifesaving care in
serious medical emergencies. The Master Plan Update further found that “[t]he City does not
deploy enough firefighters daily to safely resolve even a single serious fire or EMS incident, or
to provide adequate capacity for simultaneous incidents,” and concluded that “[t]he City is
geographically too large to effectively serve with [the existing] three fire stations.”1 The Update
recommended that the city add a fourth fire station in the southwest section of the city as soon
as fiscally feasible, and that if the city should expand to the northeast, a fifth fire station in the

1 2019 Master Plan Update, City of Gilroy Fire Department, page 6
(https://www.cityofgilroy.org/DocumentCenter/View/9720/Vol-1---Gilroy-FD-Master-Plan-Update-Report---
Final-11-14-19?bidId=)

https://www.cityofgilroy.org/DocumentCenter/View/9720/Vol-1---Gilroy-FD-Master-Plan-Update-Report---Final-11-14-19?bidId=
https://www.cityofgilroy.org/DocumentCenter/View/9720/Vol-1---Gilroy-FD-Master-Plan-Update-Report---Final-11-14-19?bidId=


northeast section should be seriously considered. (The subject parcels are adjacent to the
northeast section of the city.)

The Wren Investors and Hewell Urban Service Area Amendment Plan for Services (“Plan for
Services”) submitted by the City to LAFCO states that “tax revenues from the proposed project
would not be sufficient to fund additional staffing needs for services that the City would provide
to the site” and that funding for future staffing of both the police and fire department would be
derived from the General Fund.2 According to the Plan for Services, the Gilroy Police
Department is not currently meeting the standard for response to community-generated calls for
service.3

Roads. The City of Gilroy Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for fiscal years 2021-2025 states:
“Most of Gilroy’s roads have received minimal to no treatment in a number of years. The older
the pavement of a given roadway, the faster it deteriorates. As a result, the percentage of “Very
Poor” streets (PCI 0-25) has increased by 5.6% from 2017 to 2019 while the percentage of
“Poor” streets (PCI 25-50) has increased by 10.5%, and the percentage of “Good” streets (PCI
70-100) has decreased by 16.3%. Consequently, the City’s deferred maintenance cost has
increased from $14.9 million in 2017 to $33.4 million in 2019.”4 According to the LAFCO staff
report, the estimated costs of all the projects identified in the CIP is approximately $118M, of
which only $25M is funded in the current CIP. Thus, there is an unfunded backlog of nearly
$100M in capital improvement projects.

Wastewater. The Plan for Services states that future development on the site would connect to
the closest sewer main to the site, which is the Joint Morgan Hill-Gilroy Trunk, and states that
“modeling of the system shows that during wet weather flow conditions, the Joint Morgan
Hill-Gilroy Trunk becomes deficient when Morgan Hill flows are introduced.”5 Although a relief
trunk line is partially constructed, completion of this line depends on the City of Morgan Hill
committing funds to the project.

Negative Fiscal Impact on Both City and County. The Fiscal Impact Analysis of the Gilroy
USA Amendment submitted by the city to LAFCO concluded that this project would have a
negative fiscal impact on both the City of Gilroy and the County of Santa Clara.6 The Plan for
Services proposes to meet this shortfall via a community facilities district (CFD). However, it is
unknown at this point whether a CFD could ensure adequate funding for these purposes. It
should also be noted that a CFD would only mitigate the negative fiscal impact on the City, not
the negative fiscal impact on the County.

6 Fiscal Impact Analysis of the Wren Investors and Hewell Urban Service Area Amendment to the City of
Gilroy and the County of Santa Clara, prepared by Applied Development Economics, Inc., 2019

5 Wren Investors and Hewell Urban Service Area Amendment Plan for Services, page 4-3

4 City of Gilroy Capital Improvement Program Fiscal Year 2021 to Fiscal Year 2025, page 6
(https://www.cityofgilroy.org/DocumentCenter/View/11586/Adopted-CIP-FY21-FY25?bidId=)

3 Wren Investors and Hewell Urban Service Area Amendment Plan for Services, page 8-2
2 Wren Investors and Hewell Urban Service Area Amendment Plan for Services, page 7-4 and 8-3

https://www.cityofgilroy.org/DocumentCenter/View/11586/Adopted-CIP-FY21-FY25?bidId=


The Gilroy USA Amendment Would Cause Loss of Farmland

The Santa Clara Valley Open Space Authority (OSA) has submitted a letter to LAFCO
identifying the impacts of the Gilroy USA Amendment to farmland. OSA’s letter states in part:

Recent SSURGO [Soil Survey Geographic Database (USDA)] data indicates soil within
the Project area includes 38 acres of Farmland of Statewide Importance and 15 acres of
Prime Farmland if irrigated and/or protected from flooding. This data more accurately
reflects the high farmland potential to better assess impacts to agricultural resources.
Additionally, 2018 FMMP data reclassified 37 acres within the Project area to Farmland
of Local Importance, indicating the land has significance to the local agricultural
economy. This designation, as adopted by the Santa Clara County Board of Supervisors,
includes undeveloped lands mapped as Important Farmland in the past and reflects the
capacity for future agricultural production.

It is clear that continued loss of viable farmland in Santa Clara County remains a critical
issue for the community and policymakers. Contending influences within the rural-urban
interface creates a unique challenge for Santa Clara County farmers. Landowner
investment in farmland or agricultural operations may cease in anticipation of
development potential, causing more farmland to fall out of Important Farmland
designation. As noted in the SCVAP, most agricultural conversions are associated with
city annexations in South County. [OSA] echoes LAFCO staff assessment that
expansion of urban services and infrastructure as part of a future residential
development may threaten the surrounding unincorporated area. Less than a quarter
mile north of the Project area is a large block of contiguous Prime Farmland which may
be susceptible to the effects of urban sprawl.7

We support OSA’s assessment of the impacts to farmland of the Gilroy USA Amendment. It
should be noted that the state definition of “prime farmland” is dependent on the land being in
active irrigation for a period of time. This allows landowners to cause their land to fall out of
“prime farmland” designation by refraining from irrigation, purposely in order to avoid mitigation
requirements and other regulatory barriers to development. We also note the potential
growth-inducing impacts to neighboring farmland that could result from conversion of the subject
parcels to development.

7 Letter from Santa Clara Valley Open Space Authority to LAFCO of Santa Clara County, 3/31/23



We support the LAFCO staff’s recommendation and urge the Commissioners to deny the Gilroy
USA Amendment. Thank you for your consideration of these comments.

Sincerely,

Alice Kaufman, Policy and Advocacy Director
Green Foothills

James Eggers, Director
Sierra Club Loma Prieta Chapter

Trish Mulvey
CLEAN South Bay

Jordan Grimes, Resilience Manager
Greenbelt Alliance



 
 

PAGE 1 OF 13 

ITEM # 7 

LAFCO MEETING: April 5, 2023 

TO:    LAFCO 

FROM:  Neelima Palacherla, Executive Officer 
   Dunia Noel, Asst. Executive Officer  

SUBJECT:  PROPOSED WORK PLAN AND BUDGET FOR FY 2024 

FINANCE COMMITTEE / STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS  
1. Adopt the Proposed Work Plan for Fiscal Year 2023-2024.  
2. Adopt the Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024.  
3. Find that the Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2024 is expected to be adequate to 

allow the Commission to fulfill its statutory responsibilities.  
4. Authorize staff to transmit the Proposed Budget adopted by the Commission 

including the estimated agency costs as well as the LAFCO public hearing notice 
for the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2024 Final Budget to the cities, the special 
districts, the County, the Cities Association of Santa Clara County and the Santa 
Clara County Special Districts Association.  

ANNUAL BUDGET PROCESS REQUIREMENTS 
The Cortese Knox Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (CKH 
Act) which became effective on January 1, 2001, requires LAFCO, as an independent 
agency, to annually adopt a proposed budget by May 1 and a final budget by June 15 
at noticed public hearings. Both the proposed and the final budgets are required to 
be transmitted to the cities, the special districts and the County. Government Code 
§56381(a) establishes that at a minimum, the budget must be equal to that of the 
previous year unless the Commission finds that reduced staffing or program costs 
will nevertheless allow it to fulfill its statutory responsibilities. Any unspent funds at 
the end of the year may be rolled over into the next fiscal year budget. After 
adoption of the final budget by LAFCO, the County Auditor is required to apportion 
the net operating expenses of the Commission to the agencies represented on 
LAFCO.  

 

 

 



PAGE 2 OF 13 

FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 WORKPLAN & BUDGET DEVELOPMENT 
TIMELINE 

Dates  Staff Tasks / LAFCO Action  

March 13 - 
April 5 

Notice of this public hearing was advertised in a local newspaper, 
posted on the LAFCO website and distributed to local agencies. The 
agenda and a link to the posted agenda packet are also distributed 
to local agencies, interested persons and organizations. The 
proposed Workplan and Budget are posted on the LAFCO website 
and available for public review and comment.  

April 5 LAFCO public hearing on adoption of Proposed Workplan and 
Budget 

April 6 Proposed Work Plan and Budget, preliminary apportionments and 
LAFCO public hearing notice for Final Budget Hearing transmitted 
to agencies  

June 7 LAFCO public hearing and adoption of Final Budget  

June 7 -  
July 1 

Final Budget transmitted to agencies; Auditor requests payment 
from agencies 

LAFCO FINANCE COMMITTEE  
At its February 1, 2023 LAFCO meeting, the Commission appointed Commissioner 
Melton, Commissioner Beall and Alternate Commissioner Chapman to serve on the 
Finance Committee.   

At its special meeting held on February 27, 2023, the Finance Committee discussed 
the progress on the current year work plan and the status of the current year 
budget; and recommended the proposed FY 2024 work plan and budget for 
consideration and adoption by the full commission.  

CURRENT YEAR IN REVIEW   
PROGRESS REPORT ON FY 2022-2023 WORK PLAN  
LAFCO’s current fiscal year workplan was adopted at a noticed public hearing held 
on April 6, 2022. Attachment A depicts the current status (through the third 
quarter of the year) of the 2022-2023 Work Program.  

A major component of the current work program involves the ongoing Countywide 
Fire Service Review. LAFCO retained a new consultant in June 2022 and relaunched 
its Countywide Fire Service Review. The new consultant is working with LAFCO staff 
and the service provider agencies to finalize / validate agency profiles after 
completing an extensive and challenging data collection process. To date, two 
Technical Advisory Committee meetings have been held to obtain feedback on key 



PAGE 3 OF 13 

aspects including evaluation criteria and preliminary findings. It is anticipated that 
another Technical Advisory Committee meeting will be held in the next few weeks 
and a Draft Service Review Report will be published for public review and comment 
by the end of this fiscal year.  

LAFCO has received and /or processed major applications such as a special district 
sphere of influence amendment/annexation and a city urban service area 
amendment. Staff has held pre-application meetings and has received and 
responded to many requests for assistance and expertise from local and regional 
agencies on a variety of matters related to city service extensions, city 
annexations/island annexations, special district detachments, and housing element 
updates. Similarly, responding to public inquiries is another significant and growing 
area of the workplan and staff has seen an increase in the volume and complexity of 
such inquiries, including requests for information under the Public Records Act, and 
information requests from local attorneys, appraisers, real estate agents and 
developers.  

In accordance with the Commission’s directive, as opportunities arise and time 
permits, staff continues to conduct targeted outreach to various local entities 
(special districts, County, cities, civil grand jury, and other community 
organizations/individuals) through informational presentations on LAFCO and its 
role in promoting sustainable growth and governance in the county.  

The Commission has experienced major changes in its membership; in the last two 
months, 6 new commissioners have come on board and LAFCO will be selecting a 
new public member and an alternate public member to fill positions due to term 
expirations in May 2023. Staff conducts onboarding activities and new 
commissioner orientations for all new appointees.  

Other notable administrative activities and projects that have been completed or 
are currently underway include among others, the annual financial audit, the 
annual report, required staff training, LaserFische and LAFCO database server 
upgrades/migrations, transition back to in-person and hybrid meetings to allow 
for remote public participation, and preparations for webcasting LAFCO meetings.    

Notwithstanding the preceding progress on various work plan items, some 
important, high priority projects such as the comprehensive review and update of 
LAFCO policies and scanning of LAFCO records have fallen behind and will not be 
completed by the end of the fiscal year. The delays are partly due to the application 
workload, increased demand for LAFCO services and staff’s efforts to prioritize and 
meet the needs of the local agencies and the public; and staffing issues including a 
vacant position since January 2021. Completion of the County classification study in 
July 2022 allows LAFCO staff to implement the Study’s recommendations and work 
with the County Employee Services Agency on recruitment efforts for a new LAFCO 
Clerk. It is anticipated that the vacant LAFCO Clerk position will be filled by the end 
of this fiscal year.  



PAGE 4 OF 13 

The projects in the current workplan that will not be completed by the end of the 
fiscal year have been added to the proposed FY 2024 workplan.  

The LAFCO Annual Report for FY 2023 will be published at the end of the current 
fiscal year and will document all the applications reviewed and processed by LAFCO 
in Fiscal Year 2023; and will summarize the various accomplishments, 
activities/projects that LAFCO has engaged in or completed during the period.  
STATUS OF FY 2022-2023 ADOPTED BUDGET  
Attachment D includes the FY 2023 budget adopted by the Commission at a noticed 
public hearing on June 1, 2022, the status of LAFCO’s expenditures and revenues as 
of February 21, 2023, and expenditure and revenue projections for end of FY 2023. 
The adopted LAFCO budget for FY 2023 is $985,974 and reflects a 11% increase 
compared to the previous fiscal year’s (FY 2022) budgeted operating expenses. It is 
estimated that the total year-end projected expenditures for FY 2023 would be 
approximately 13% lower than the adopted budget primarily due to salary savings 
from the vacant staff position. Staff anticipates that year end revenue for FY 2023 
will be slightly lower than the amount budgeted. LAFCO has received the respective 
FY 2023 funds from the County, the cities and the independent special districts. The 
actual fund balance rolled over at the end of FY 2022 was significantly higher at 
$410,027, compared to the amount estimated ($201,006) in the FY 2023 budget. 
The excess fund balance and the unspent FY 2023 expenditure amounts will carry 
over into FY 2024 and will be used to reduce net operating expenses that would in 
turn translate to reduced FY 2024 costs for contributing agencies.   

PROPOSED WORK PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024 
Attachment C includes the proposed work plan for FY 2024, as recommended by 
the Finance Committee, for consideration and adoption by the full commission.  

The proposed workplan includes ongoing as well as new projects and outlines 
detailed projects/activities organized under six broad areas: (1.) LAFCO application 
processing; (2.) island annexations; (3.) outreach, government/community relations 
and customer service; (4.) service reviews, special studies and sphere of influence 
updates; (5.) commission support; and (6.) administrative projects. The work plan 
assigns priority levels (high, moderate, low); and designates whether the work is to 
be conducted by staff or outside consultants. 

The proposed work plan includes a broad spectrum of responsibilities that LAFCO, 
as an independent local agency and as a regulatory body of the state, is expected to 
fulfil in its role of promoting sustainable growth and good governance in Santa Clara 
County. It incorporates the Commission’s legislative functions and mandates and 
also the Commission’s proactive local initiatives and priorities such as its directives 
for ongoing public outreach and education and its proactive service review and 
implementation program.  

The Finance Committee discussed the possible creation of a LAFCO student 
internship program and recommended that LAFCO staff contact the County to 



PAGE 5 OF 13 

further explore such a potential initiative. The Committee also discussed a potential 
strategic planning workshop in the upcoming year and requested opportunities for 
ongoing commissioner education.    

Reduced staffing levels over the last two years have impacted the functioning of the 
LAFCO office. While the LAFCO Clerk position is expected to be filled in the next 
several months, actual professional staffing capabilities will be below 4.0 FTE for at 
least half of the upcoming fiscal year, considering the onboarding and training 
period for the new staff person.  

According to the Comprehensive Organizational Assessment report prepared by 
LAFCO’s consultant, even the 4.0 FTE staffing level is lower than other LAFCOs with 
comparable operations. However, in August 2020, the Commission voted to 
maintain the current 4.0 FTE staffing level given uncertain economic conditions 
related to the COVID-19 pandemic but kept open the option to consider the 
potential addition of 1.0 FTE in the future.  

Staff actively manages the workload in order to focus on accomplishing essential 
activities such as processing applications, completing projects currently underway 
such as the Countywide Fire Service Review, maintaining core administrative 
functions, tracking on-going projects and studies, supporting the commission and 
responding to local agency and public requests for assistance. Non-essential 
activities and other proactive initiatives will need to be deferred until staffing 
levels/expertise are restored. This is consistent with past practice where LAFCO’s 
statutorily mandated activities take priority over administrative projects that are 
not statutorily required, and over proactive commission-initiated projects which are 
discretionary but support LAFCO’s mission and statutory requirements.  

PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024 
Attachment D includes the proposed Budget for FY 2023-2024 as recommended by 
the Finance Committee, for consideration and adoption by the full commission. The 
Finance Committee conducted a thorough review of the work plan and budget and 
recognized the public benefit of LAFCO’s work and the high demand for LAFCO’s 
services from local agencies and the public. The Committee maintained its 
commitment to ensure adequate resources that allow the Commission to fulfill its 
statutory responsibilities and accomplish its work plan while also limiting costs for 
LAFCO’s funding agencies The overall expenditure for FY 2024 ($1,296,000) in the 
proposed budget is approximately 6% higher than the current year budgeted 
expenses ($1,222,980).  

Projected current year cost savings (such as from salary savings), and a larger than 
estimated fund balance from FY 2022 are expected to result in a $366,814 fund 
balance at the end of the current year – and will be used to reduce net operating 
expenses in FY 2024.  

LAFCO’s proposed net operating expense for FY 2024 is 9% lower than the FY 2023  
budgeted net operating expense and is similar to the FY 2022 level.  



PAGE 6 OF 13 

 
 
DESCRIPTION OF FY 2023-2024 BUDGET LINE ITEMS 
LAFCO and the County of Santa Clara entered into a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) (effective since July 2001), under the terms of which, the County provides 
staffing, facilities, and services to LAFCO. The associated costs are reflected in the 
proposed LAFCO budget. LAFCO is a stand-alone, separate fund within the County’s 
accounting and budget system and the LAFCO budget information is formatted using 
the County’s account descriptions/codes.  

The following is a detailed itemization of the proposed budget.  
EXPENDITURES 
Expenditures are divided into two main sections: Staff Salary and Benefits (Object 1) 
which comprise 68% of the total expenditures, and Services and Supplies (Object 2). 
OBJECT 1. SALARIES AND BENEFITS   $882,121 
This line item supports the salary and benefits for the 4.0 FTE positions including 
the Executive Officer position, a Senior Analyst position, an Associate Analyst 
position, and a Clerk position. The Clerk position is currently vacant and is 
anticipated to be filled by the end of the current fiscal year. LAFCO contracts with 
the County of Santa Clara for staffing and services and in accordance with the MOU 
between the County and LAFCO, all four positions are staffed through the County 
Executive’s Office. The proposed amount is based on the best available projections 
from the County at this time for salary and benefits for the 4 positions. Changes to 
the projections for the four positions that occur within the next couple of months 
will be reflected in the Final LAFCO budget.  

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

Budgeted Net Operating Expenses



PAGE 7 OF 13 

OBJECT 2. SERVICES AND SUPPLIES 
5255100 Intra-County Professional   $10,000 
This includes the costs for services from various County agencies such as the County 
Surveyor’s Office, the County Assessors’ Office, and the Registrar of Voters. The 
County Surveyor assists with map review and approval for boundary change 
proposals. In addition, the Surveyor’s Office also assists with research to resolve 
boundary discrepancies. The County Assessor’s Office prepares reports for LAFCO 
and the Registrar of Voters provides data necessary for processing LAFCO 
applications. This item also allows LAFCO to seek GIS mapping services including 
maintenance and technical assistance from the County Planning Office, as necessary. 
This budgeted amount has been maintained at the same level as the current year.   
5255800 Legal Counsel   $82,780 
This item covers the cost for general legal services.  

In February 2009, the Commission retained the firm of Best Best & Krieger for legal 
services on a monthly retainer. The contract was amended in 2010 to reduce the 
number of total hours required to 240 hours per year. The contract sets the hourly 
rate and allows for an annual automatic adjustment to the rates based on the 
Consumer Price Index (CPI). In 2017, the contract was once again amended to 
increase the monthly retainer cost and limit the CEQA work within the retainer to 
24 hours annually. Any additional CEQA work above 24 hours would be charged 
outside the retainer at the same hourly rate. 

The monthly retainer for FY 2024 increases to $6,630, based on a 5.6% increase in 
the Consumer Price Index for the prior calendar year (2022). This item covers the 
annual retainer fees and includes additional monies to cover approximately 10 
hours of work outside the retainer at the current hourly rate of $316.  
5255500 Consultant Services   $150,000  
This item is budgeted for hiring consultants to assist LAFCO with special projects 
such as for conducting service reviews and special studies, facilitating a strategic 
planning workshop, scanning LAFCO’s hardcopy records into the existing electronic 
document management system, meeting broadcast services for LAFCO meetings and 
for conducting the annual financial audit, among others. The Commission must take 
action to authorize such special projects prior to expending funds. This item also 
includes costs associated with ongoing existing contracts such as costs for 
maintenance and hosting of the LAFCO website by an outside provider. The Finance 
Committee recommended that an amount of $6,000 be allocated under this item to 
cover a potential future student internship program cost.  
5285700 Meal Claims   $750 
This item includes cost of food to support Commission events, workshops, meetings.   
5220200 Insurance   $8,335 
This item is for the purpose of purchasing general liability insurance and workers’ 
compensation coverage for LAFCO. In 2010, LAFCO switched from the County’s 



PAGE 8 OF 13 

coverage to the Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA), for the 
provision of general liability insurance. Additionally, LAFCO also obtains workers’ 
compensation coverage for its commissioners from SDRMA. Workers’ compensation 
for LAFCO staff is currently covered by the County and is part of the payroll charge. 
SDRMA has recently provided estimated FY 2024 contribution amounts for use in 
the budgeting process: Property Liability ($7,225) and Workers’ Compensation 
($1,100). SDRMA is in the process of negotiating rates on behalf of its program 
membership and expects to confirm rates in mid-May. The Final budget will reflect 
any major revisions to these estimates.   
5270100  Rent & Lease   $54,766 
This item includes FY 2024 monthly rent for LAFCO office space located at 777 
North First Street, Suite 420, San Jose. The original lease term expired on May 5, 
2022. At its February 2, 2022 meeting, the Commission authorized the extension of 
the lease for a five-year period through April 30, 2027.  
5250100 Office Expenses   $5,000 
This item includes funds for purchase of books, subscriptions/publications 
necessary to keep current on laws and trends; small equipment and supplies for 
office operations, including printer/photocopier lease.  
5255650 Data Processing Services   $27,520 
This item includes estimated costs associated with County Technology Solutions & 
Services Department (TSS) providing IT services to the LAFCO program. According 
to TSS, the projected costs cover Telecom services for 5 phones- VOIP/Landline 
($3,000), Wireless Carrier Service ($144), MS Adobe special order, Acrobat Pro and 
MS Visio monthly subscription ($2,480), and other services ($21,896) comprising 
Enterprise Content Management services and solutions, Kronos support, 
Architecture and Innovation Services, Claranet services, Data Analytics and 
Visualizations, digital print and sccLearn. Any further revised cost estimates 
received from the County will be reflected in the Final LAFCO budget.  
5225500 Commissioner’s Fees   $10,000 
This item covers the $100 per diem amount for LAFCO commissioners and alternate 
commissioners to attend LAFCO meetings and committee meetings.  
5260100 Publications and Legal Notices   $1,000 
This item is for costs associated with publication of hearing notices for LAFCO 
applications and other projects/ studies, as required by state law. This budgeted 
amount has been maintained at the same level as the current year.   
5245100 Membership Dues   $13,870 
This item includes CALAFCO – the California Association of LAFCOs membership 
dues. At its meeting on February 17, 2023, the CALAFCO Board approved an 8.27% 
rate adjustment to account for inflation in accordance with the CALAFCO Bylaws.  
The FY 2024 membership dues for Santa Clara LAFCO is $12,221.  



PAGE 9 OF 13 

Additionally, this item includes estimated membership dues for CSDA – the 
California Special Districts Association. In June 2018, CSDA informed that Santa 
Clara LAFCO as a customer of SDRMA, must be a member of CSDA pursuant to 
SDRMA bylaws.  
5250750 Printing and Reproduction   $1,500 
This covers printing expenses for reports such as service reviews or other studies 
and documents.  
5285800 Business Travel  $15,900 
This item includes funding for staff and commissioners to attend conferences and 
workshops. It would cover costs of air travel, accommodation, conference 
registration and other expenses at the conferences. CALAFCO annually holds a Staff 
Workshop (location TBD, April 2024) and an Annual Conference (Monterey, October 
2023) that is attended by commissioners as well as staff.  
5285300 Private Automobile Mileage   $1,000 
This item provides for mileage reimbursement when staff travels by private car to 
conduct site visits and attend meetings / training sessions. This budgeted amount 
has been maintained at the same level as the current year.   
5285200 Transportation and Travel (for use of County car)  $600 
This item would cover costs associated with the use of a County vehicle for travel to 
conferences, workshops, site visits and meetings.  
5281600 Overhead   $20,358 
This overhead charge is established by the County Controller’s Office, for service 
rendered by various County departments that do not directly bill LAFCO. The 
overhead includes LAFCO’s share of the County’s FY 2024 Cost Allocation Plan 
which is based on actual overhead costs from FY 2022 – the most recent year for 
which actual costs are available. The overhead amount includes the following 
charges from: 

County Executive’s Office:   $6,653 

Controller-Treasurer:    $11,003 

Employee Services Agency:   $6,072 

OBA:       $357 

BHS-MH - Employee:    $198 

TSS Intragovernmental Service: $958 

Technology Services & Solutions:  $1,710 

Procurement:    $57 

Equal Opp. (County Counsel): $809 

CoB – Harvey Rose Mgt Audit: $22 



PAGE 10 OF 13 

Further, a “roll forward” is applied which is calculated by comparing FY 2022 Cost 
Plan estimates with FY 2022 actuals. The FY 2022 cost estimates were higher than 
the actuals by $7,480; this amount is deducted from the FY 2024 Cost Plan. This is a 
state requirement.  
5275200 Computer Hardware   $3,000 
This item is designated for any required hardware upgrades / purchases.  
5250800 Computer Software   $5,000 
This amount is designated for computer software purchases, and annual licenses for 
GIS software and records management (LaserFische) hardware/software annual 
maintenance agreement.  
5250250 Postage    $500 
This amount covers postage costs for mailing notices, agendas, agenda packets and 
general correspondence.  
5252100 Training Programs   $2,000 
This item covers the costs associated with attendance at staff development courses 
and seminars. CALAFCO conducts University Courses throughout the year on topics 
of relevance to LAFCO.  
REVENUES 
4103400 Application Fees   $30,000 
It is anticipated that LAFCO will receive approximately $30,000 in fees from 
processing applications. The actual amount earned from fees corresponds to the 
level of application activity.  
4301100 Interest   $6,000 
It is estimated that LAFCO will receive an amount of approximately $6,000 from 
interest earned on LAFCO funds. 
3400150  Fund Balance from Previous Fiscal Year (i.e, FY 2023)  $366,814 
It is projected that there will be a savings or fund balance of approximately 
$366,814 at the end of the current year, which will be carried over to reduce the 
proposed Fiscal Year 2024 costs for LAFCO’s funding agencies (cities, independent 
special districts and the County). 

Projected Year-End [FY 2023] Fund Balance = (Projected Year-End [FY 23] Revenue 
+ Actual Fund Balance from Previous Fiscal Year [FY 22] + Funds Received from 
Local Agencies in FY 23) - (Projected Year-End [FY 23] Expenses) 

= ($31,000+ $410,027 + $985,974) - $1,060,187 

= $366,814 

The fund balance excludes the reserves.  



PAGE 11 OF 13 

RESERVES 
3400800 Reserves Available   $200,000 
This item includes reserves for two purposes: litigation reserve – for use if LAFCO is 
involved with any litigation; and contingency reserve – to be used for unexpected 
expenses. If used during the year, this account will be replenished in the following 
year. Since 2012, the reserves have been retained in a separate Reserves account, 
thus eliminating the need for LAFCO to budget each year for this purpose. 

The Reserves amount was held at $250,000 since FY 2020 to timely implement 
potential recommendations from the Comprehensive Organizational Assessment, 
and as a tentative measure in recognition that LAFCO operates in an increasingly 
complex and controversial environment.  

In FY 2022, LAFCO reduced the Reserves from $250,000 to $200,000, in order to 
further reduce costs to local agencies given the COVID -19 related economic 
hardships; and maintained the reserve level at $200,000 in FY 2023. The Finance 
Committee recommends maintaining the current level of reserves for FY 2024. This 
places the proposed Reserve amount at approximately 15% of the total FY 2024 
expenditures. LAFCO has not adopted a Reserves policy, however as an independent 
agency, LAFCO should maintain sufficient reserves for flexibility and stability in the 
event of unanticipated needs.  
FY 2024 NET OPERATING EXPENSES  
FY 2024 Net Operating Expenses =  (Proposed FY 2024 Expenditures) - (Proposed 
FY 2024 Fee & Interest Revenues + Projected Fund Balance from FY 2023) 

= ($1,296,000) – ($36,000 + $366,814) 

= $893,186 

The projected operating expense for FY 2024 is based on projected expenditures 
and revenues as well as on estimated fund balance for the current year. Further 
revisions may be needed as we get a better indication of current year 
expenses/revenues towards the end of this fiscal year. Additionally, a more accurate 
projection of costs/revenues for the upcoming fiscal year could become available, 
particularly for employee salary and benefits. This could result in changes to the 
proposed net operating expenses for FY 2024 which could in turn impact the costs 
for each of LAFCO’s funding agencies.  

COST APPORTIONMENT TO CITIES, INDEPENDENT SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
AND COUNTY 
In January 2013, independent special districts were seated on LAFCO. Government 
Code §56381(b)(1)(A) provides that when independent special districts are 
represented on LAFCO, the county, cities and independent special districts must 
each provide a one-third share of LAFCO’s operational budget. 

The City of San Jose has permanent membership on LAFCO pursuant to Government 
Code Section 56327. As required by Government Code §56381.6(b), the City of San 



PAGE 12 OF 13 

Jose’s share of LAFCO costs must be in the same proportion as its member bears to 
the total membership on the commission, excluding the public member. The 
remaining cities’ share must be apportioned in proportion to each city’s total 
revenues, as reported in the most recent edition of the Cities Annual Report 
published by the Controller, as a percentage of the combined city revenues within a 
county.  

Government Code Section §56381 provides that the independent special districts’ 
share shall be apportioned in proportion to each district’s total revenues as a 
percentage of the combined total district revenues within a county. The Santa Clara 
County Special Districts Association (SDA), at its August 13, 2012 meeting, adopted 
an alternative formula for distributing the independent special districts’ share to 
individual districts. The SDA’s agreement requires each district’s cost to be based on 
a fixed percentage of the total independent special districts’ share. 

Therefore, in Santa Clara County, the County pays a third of LAFCO’s operational 
costs, the independent special districts pay a third, the City of San Jose pays one 
sixth and the remaining cities pay one sixth. Government Code §56381(c) requires 
the County Auditor to request payment from the cities, independent special districts 
and the County no later than July 1 of each year for the amount each agency owes 
based on the net operating expenses of the Commission and the actual 
administrative costs incurred by the Auditor in apportioning costs and requesting 
payment.  

The following is a draft apportionment to the agencies based on the proposed net 
operating expenses for FY 2024. 

 

 
Apportionment of the costs among the 14 cities and among the 17 independent 
special districts will be calculated by the County Controller’s Office after LAFCO 
adopts the final budget in June. In order to provide each of the cities and districts 

$297,729

$297,729

$148,864

$148,864

Proposed FY 2024 LAFCO Cost Apportionments 

County Independent Special Districts Other Cities City of San Jose



PAGE 13 OF 13 

with a general indication of their costs in advance, Attachment E includes draft 
estimated apportionments, based on the proposed FY 2024 net operating expenses 
and the FY 2020-2021 Cities Annual Report. The final apportionments will be 
prepared by the County Controller’s Office based on the latest available Cities 
Annual Report.  

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A: Status of FY 2023 Work Plan 

Attachment B:  LAFCO Financials 2008-2022 

Attachment C:  Proposed Work Plan for Fiscal Year 2024 

Attachment D:  Proposed LAFCO Budget for Fiscal Year 2024 

Attachment E:  Estimated FY 2024 Costs to Agencies 





STATUS OF CURRENT YEAR WORK PLAN (FISCAL YEAR 2023) 

PAGE 1 of 7 

  PRIORITY*   H - High Priority (essential activities: state mandate, Commission directive, requirements) 

M - Medium Priority (important, provided resources allow or time permits) 

L  - Low Priority (desirable provided resources allow or time permits, not urgent) 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 
STATUS 

L
A

F
C

O
 A

P
P

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

Process applicant-initiated LAFCO 

proposals 

Encourage pre-application meetings 
prior to application submittal 

Conduct pre-agenda meetings with 
County Depts to obtain Assessor & 
Surveyor reports, as needed 

Process applications per CKH Act 
requirements: issue Notice of 
Application, Certificate of Filing / 
Sufficiency, Public Hearing Notice, staff 
report, conduct protest proceedings, as 
needed 

Staff H Several pre-
application 

meetings held 
(Monte Sereno, 

Sunnyvale/Cuper
tino Sanitary 

District, WVSD, 
San Jose) 

3 city conducted 
and a SOI 

amendment/ 
annexation 
application 

completed, one 
USA amendment 

in progress 

Comment on potential LAFCO applications, 

relevant projects & development proposals, 

city General Plan updates and/ or related 

environmental documents 

Ongoing, as needed Staff H Ongoing 

County Housing 
Element 

Review and update LAFCO policies for 

context, clarity and consistency with State 

law 

In progress Staff / 

Consultant 

H In progress 

Prepare flowcharts for LAFCO processes 

and update application packets for current 

requirements and ease of public use 

Upon completion of policies update Staff L Internal 
application 
processing 
checklists 
updated 

ITEM # 7
Attachment A



STATUS OF CURRENT YEAR WORK PLAN (FISCAL YEAR 2023) 

PAGE 2 of 7 
 

 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 
STATUS  

IS
L

A
N

D
 A

N
N

E
X

A
T

IO
N

S
 

Conduct outreach to cities with islands, 

follow up on responses including 

review/research of city limits/ USA 

boundaries, provide assistance with 

annexations or necessary USA amendments  

Prepare and distribute island maps to 
cities 

Staff L As needed 

Facilitate interagency discussions to 

support remaining island annexations 

Monte Sereno  Staff H As needed, 
pending city 

initiation 

Review and finalize city-conducted island 

annexations  

Ongoing, as needed 

  

Staff H As needed  

O
U

T
R

E
A

C
H

, 
G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
 /
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 

R
E

L
A

T
IO

N
S

 &
 C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
  

C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 

Conduct outreach to increase awareness of 

LAFCO’s role 

 

 

 

  

Presentations to cities, other agencies 
on LAFCO, as relevant 

Distribute LAFCO communications 
material to elected officials and staff of 
cities, special districts and the County  

Seek exhibit opportunities at public 
spaces / events 

Maintain website as the primary 
information resource on LAFCO 

Increase social media presence 
(Twitter)  

Staff L 

 

M 

 

L 

H 

 

L 

Presentations 
provided upon 
request (Grand 

Jury, Leadership 
Sunnyvale, San 
Jose Planning) 

 

Website updated  

Engage and establish relationships with 

local (cities, districts, county), regional 

(ABAG/MTC), state (SGC, OPR, DoC, 

SWRCB) agencies, organizations such as 

SDA, SCCAPO, CALAFCO, other 

stakeholder groups 

 

 

Attend regular meetings of SDA 
(quarterly), SCCAPO (monthly), County 
Planning Dept.(quarterly)  

Small water systems issues / legislation 

Collaborate with agencies and entities 
with goals common to LAFCO 

Staff M 

 
M 
 

M 

Ongoing 



STATUS OF CURRENT YEAR WORK PLAN (FISCAL YEAR 2023) 

PAGE 3 of 7 
 

 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 
STATUS  

Track LAFCO related legislation  EO attends CALAFCO Legislative 
Committee  

Commission takes positions and submit 
letters on proposed legislation 

Staff L 
 
 
 

M 

EO served on the 
Legislative 

Committee until 
October 2021   

Respond to public enquiries re. LAFCO 

policies, procedures and application filing 

requirements  

Timely response to public inquiries  

Update the PRA form for the website 

Document research on complex 
inquiries 

Report to Commission on complex 
inquiries 

Staff H 

L 

L 

H 

Ongoing  

High volume of 
enquiries 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 R
E

V
IE

W
S

, 
S

P
E

C
IA

L
 S

T
U

D
IE

S
 &

  

S
P

H
E

R
E

 O
F

 I
N

F
L

U
E

N
C

E
 U

P
D

A
T

E
S

 

 

Countywide Fire Service Review Manage new consultant’s work and 
contract 

Coordinate TAC meetings 

Attend stakeholder interviews with 
consultant  

Work with consultant on any data 
collection issues  

Review and comment on administrative 
draft reports  

Distribute Public hearing notices and 
coordinate community workshops and 
public hearings  

Prepare and distribute 
stakeholder/public outreach material  

Coordinate stakeholder / public 
engagement process  

Prepare staff reports with 
implementation recommendations  

Staff / 

Consultant 

H Working with  
new consultant 

on data collection 
and profiles 
preparation, 
review and 
comment 

Conducted 2 TAC 
meetings 



STATUS OF CURRENT YEAR WORK PLAN (FISCAL YEAR 2023) 

PAGE 4 of 7 
 

 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 
STATUS  

Follow up with agencies and report back 
to the commission 

Continue to monitor implementation of 

recommendations from previous service 

reviews and conduct special studies, as 

necessary 

RRRPD study – city took action to delay 
decision on consolidation 

 

Staff L Pending city 
action 

Map Mutual Water companies  Initial maps complete, further work 
through service review 

Staff L As needed 

Engage in or support grant / partnership 

opportunities on issues related to enhancing 

viability of agriculture, and climate smart 

growth  

As needed, and as opportunities arise Staff L As needed 

Compile and post JPA filings on the LAFCO 

website 

Notice provided, gather JPA information 
through service review process  

Staff L Ongoing 

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

     
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Provide ongoing support to the 12 

commissioners for regularly-scheduled 

Commission meetings, special meetings and 

Committee meetings (Finance Committee, 

Ad Hoc Committee on Organizational 

Assessment and the Fire Service Review 

TAC)  

Prepare and distribute public hearing 
notices and agenda packets, provide 
staff support during the meetings, 
record minutes, broadcast meetings 

Hold pre-agenda review meeting with 
Chair 

Hold pre-meeting calls with individual 
commissioners to address agenda item 
questions 

Process commissioner per diems for 
attendance at LAFCO meetings 

Staff H Ongoing 

Keep the Commission informed  EO report 

off-agenda emails, as needed 

Staff  H Ongoing  



STATUS OF CURRENT YEAR WORK PLAN (FISCAL YEAR 2023) 

PAGE 5 of 7 
 

 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 
STATUS  

Onboarding new Commissioners  Facilitate filing / completion of Form 
700, commissioner pledge, ethics 
training.  

Update LAFCO letterhead, directory, and 
website  

Set up vendor accounts, provide parking 
permits 

Conduct new Commissioner orientation 

Recognize outgoing commissioners for 
service on LAFCO 

Staff H Five new 
commissioners;  

one position 
remains vacant at 

this time 

Onboarding, 
orientations 

completed for 4; 
one in progress 

LAFCO past, 
present, future: 

guest 
presentation at 

2/1 LAFCO 
meeting 

Commissioners Selection Process Inform appointing bodies of any 
upcoming vacancies and provide 
information on appointment criteria 

Convene ISDSC committee meeting, as 
necessary 

Coordinate public member selection 
process, as necessary 

Staff H Initiated process 
for selection of 

new public 
member and 

alternate public 
member   

Conduct a Strategic Planning Workshop  2018 Workshop re. LAFCO 
Communications and Outreach Plan  

Staff / 

Consultant 

L On hold  

Commissioner participation in CALAFCO Support commissioner participation in 
CALAFCO activities / or election to the 
CALAFCO Board 

Staff L  2 commissioners 
attended 

CALAFCO Annual 
Conference 

 

 

 



STATUS OF CURRENT YEAR WORK PLAN (FISCAL YEAR 2023) 

PAGE 6 of 7 
 

 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 
STATUS  

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Prepare LAFCO annual work plan  March –June  Staff H In progress 

Prepare LAFCO annual budget March –June  Staff H In progress 

Prepare LAFCO Annual Report  August 2022 Staff H Completed 

Prepare LAFCO Annual Financial Audit October 2022 (Contract with Chavan 
Associates extended for FY 2023 and FY 
2024) 

Consultant / 

Staff 

H Completed 

 

Office / facility management  Coordinate with Building Manager on 
facilities issues  

Coordinate with County re. 
computers/network, phone, printers, 
office security, procurement , 
installation & maintenance  

Order and manage office supplies  

Make travel arrangements and process 
expense reimbursements. 

Process mileage reimbursements  

Office space lease extended (lease 
extended through April 30, 2027) 

Staff H Ongoing 

Transitioning to 
in-person / 

hybrid meetings  

Coordinating with 
County for 
webcasting 

LAFCO meetings 

 

 

 

 

 

Records management  Organize scan of LAFCO records to 
Electronic Document Management 
System (LaserFische) 

Maintain LAFCO’s hard copy records 

Maintain and enhance the LAFCO 
Website 

Maintain LAFCO database 

Staff/ 

Consultant 
 
 
Staff 
 

H 

 
H 

H 

H 

On hold 

Completed 
LaserFische and 
LAFCO database 
server migrations 

Website content   
updates 
completed 



STATUS OF CURRENT YEAR WORK PLAN (FISCAL YEAR 2023) 

PAGE 7 of 7 
 

 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 
STATUS  

Contracts and payments & receivables  Track consultant contracts and approve 
invoices 

Approve vendor invoices / process 
annual payments for various services/ 
memberships  

Coordinate with County Controller’s 
Office and track annual collection of 
payments from member agencies 

Staff H Ongoing  

Review and update LAFCO bylaws / 

administrative policies and procedures  

Ongoing, as needed Staff H 

 

Ongoing  

Staff training and development CALAFCO workshops, conferences, 
relevant courses 

Staff M Staff registered 
for CALAFCO 

Workshop  

Coordinate with County on administrative 

issues  

Attend monthly meetings with the 
Deputy County Executive 

Staff H Ongoing  

Staff performance evaluation  April – October 2022 Staff/ 

Commission 

H Completed in 
February 2023 

Comprehensive Organizational Assessment 

Study – implementation  

As needed Staff/ 

Commission 

H LAFCO/County 
MOU to be 

revised  

Recruitment and training of LAFCO staff One LAFCO Analyst position currently 
vacant – recruitment pending County 
Classification study results 

Staff H Begin LAFCO 
Clerk  

recruitment  

Other administrative functions mandated of 

a public agency (Form 700 annual filing & 

AB 1234 training compliance, Form 806, 

maintaining liability/workers comp 

insurance, etc.)  

Ongoing  Staff H Ongoing 

  

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 





FY 2008 - FY 2022 LAFCO FINANCIALS

February 2023

ITEM NO. TITLE

ACTUALS 

FY 2008

ACTUALS 

FY 2009

ACTUALS 

FY 2010

ACTUALS 

FY 2011

ACTUALS 

FY 2012

ACTUALS 

FY 2013

ACTUALS 

FY 2014

ACTUALS 

FY 2015

ACTUALS 

FY 2016

ACTUALS 

FY 2017

ACTUALS 

FY 2018

ACTUALS 

FY 2019

ACTUALS 

FY 2020

ACTUALS 

FY 2021

ACTUALS 

FY 2022

EXPENDITURES

Salary and Benefits $356,009 $400,259 $406,650 $413,966 $393,194 $411,929 $450,751 $466,755 $484,216 $514,381 $628,534 $713,900 $744,439 $730,716 $639,099

Object 2:  Services and Supplies

5255100 Intra-County Professional $66,085 $57,347 $13,572 $4,532 $6,118 $5,260 $5,663 $4,379 $18,523 $1,292 $703 $3,593 $346 $201 $354

5255800 Legal Counsel $0 $9,158 $67,074 $52,440 $48,741 $56,791 $53,550 $52,854 $57,498 $71,131 $59,400 $72,276 $69,975 $65,791 $78,977

5255500 Consultant  Services $19,372 $75,000 $76,101 $58,060 $102,349 $59,563 $35,602 $37,250 $39,625 $0 $45,000 $52,650 $106,709 $41,966 $25,389

5285700 Meal Claims $0 $368 $277 $288 $379 $91 $228 $209 $367 $50 $901 $257 $166 $0 $56

5220100 Insurance $491 $559 $550 $4,582 $4,384 $4,378 $4,231 $4,338 $4,135 $4,679 $4,893 $5,296 $5,893 $10,452 $8,591

1151 Office Expenses $1,056 $354 $716 $639 $1,212 $536 $850 $783 $6,266 $48,632 $15,412 $4,702 $2,544 $1,151 $1,462

5270100 Rent and Lease $41,120 $39,360 $44,478 $46,254 $47,903

5255650 Data Processing Services $8,361 $3,692 $3,505 $1,633 $3,384 $1,663 $3,311 $9,024 $1,519 $6,869 $877 $11,894 $15,500 $21,223 $18,125

5225500 Commissioners' Fee $5,700 $5,400 $3,500 $3,400 $4,000 $4,900 $5,800 $4,900 $6,700 $5,300 $5,400 $5,000 $4,600 $6,100 $4,200

5260100 Publications and Legal Notices $1,151 $563 $1,526 $363 $916 $222 $378 $2,484 $487 $191 $145 $192 $44 $90 $704

5245100 Membership Dues $5,500 $7,000 $7,000 $7,000 $7,000 $14,473 $0 $7,428 $7,577 $8,107 $8,674 $9,615 $11,822 $12,144 $12,316

5250750 Printing and Reproduction $5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9 $177 $703 $0 $0 $0 $799 $0 $0

5285800 Business Travel $7,238 $8,415 $4,133 $8,309 $3,095 $4,777 $5,800 $4,042 $5,811 $3,877 $13,091 $4,260 $6,908 $0 $0

5285300 Private Automobile Mileage $1,016 $704 $832 $1,185 $615 $424 $409 $396 $1,009 $1,264 $590 $689 $696 $61 $0

5285200 Transportation&Travel (County Car Usage) $894 $948 $629 $0 $384 $250 $371 $293 $559 $605 $0 $328 $256 $0 $0

5281600 Overhead $42,492 $62,391 $49,077 $46,626 $60,647 $43,133 $42,192 $34,756 $49,452 $0 $28,437 $69,944 $4,505 $30,917 $49,173

5275200 Computer Hardware $0 $451 $0 $83 $2,934 $1,791 $2,492 $0 $106 $0 $0 $773 $0 $0 $0

5250800 Computer Software $0 $0 $626 $314 $579 $3,124 $933 $1,833 $2,079 $754 $4,505 $3,012 $1,200 $4,708 $1,753

5250250 Postage $1,160 $416 $219 $568 $309 $589 $246 $597 $411 $209 $183 $117 $73 $184 $159

5252100 Staff Training Programs $0 $665 $491 $250 $300 $0 $0 $1,431 $0 $0 $0 $350 $525 $70 $70

5701000 Reserves $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $516,530 $633,691 $636,478 $604,238 $640,540 $613,895 $612,816 $633,929 $687,043 $667,342 $857,865 $998,208 $1,021,478 $972,028 $888,331

REVENUES 

4103400 Application Fees $46,559 $41,680 $35,576 $48,697 $37,426 $45,458 $63,561 $27,386 $146,168 $20,436 $29,864 $33,049 $7,587 $34,622 $41,847

4301100 Interest: Deposits and Investments $24,456 $16,230 $6,688 $4,721 $4,248 $3,416 $2,674 $2,844 $6,073 $10,830 $12,620 $12,141 $18,176 $10,488 $7,831

TOTAL REVENUES $71,015 $57,911 $42,264 $53,418 $41,674 $48,873 $66,235 $30,230 $152,241 $31,266 $42,484 $45,190 $25,763 $45,110 $49,678

3400150

AVAILABLE FUND BALANCE 

END OF YEAR $271,033 $368,800 $334,567 $275,605 $209,987 $208,219 $160,052 $226,111 $187,310 $293,489 $331,177 $314,693 $352,123 $312,351 $410,027

3400800 RESERVES AVAILABLE $100,000 $100,000 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000 $250,000 $250,000 $200,000

 BUDGETED COSTS TO AGENCIES

5440200 County $271,641 $270,896 $267,657 $292,601 $298,597 $281,780 $156,002 $187,521 $220,668 $225,778 $266,298 $277,942 $381,904 $327,928 $295,443

4600100 Cities (San Jose 50% +other cities 50%) $271,641 $270,896 $267,657 $292,601 $298,597 $282,625 $156,002 $187,521 $220,668 $225,778 $266,298 $277,942 $381,904 $327,928 $295,443

4600100 Special Distrcits $296,892 $187,521 $220,668 $225,778 $266,298 $277,942 $381,904 $327,928 $295,443

ITEM # 7
Attachment B





PROPOSED WORK PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024 

PAGE 1 OF 6 

  PRIORITY*   H - High Priority (essential activities: state mandate, Commission directive, requirements) 

M - Medium Priority (important, provided resources allow or time permits) 

L  - Low Priority (desirable provided resources allow or time permits, not urgent) 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 

L
A

F
C

O
 A

P
P

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

Process applicant-initiated LAFCO proposals Encourage pre-application meetings prior to 
application submittal 

Conduct pre-agenda meetings with County Depts to 
obtain Assessor & Surveyor reports, as needed 

Process applications per CKH Act requirements: issue 
Notice of Application, Certificate of Filing / 
Sufficiency, Public Hearing Notice, staff report, 
conduct protest proceedings, as needed 

Staff H 

Comment on potential LAFCO applications, 

relevant projects & development proposals, 

city General Plan updates and/ or related 

environmental documents 

Ongoing, as needed Staff H 

Review and update LAFCO policies for 

context, clarity and consistency with State law 

In progress Staff / Consultant H 

Prepare flowcharts for LAFCO processes and 

update application packets and application 

fee schedules for current requirements and 

ease of public use 

Upon completion of policies update Staff L 

IS
L

A
N

D
 

A
N

N
E

X
A

T
IO

N
S

 

Conduct outreach to cities with islands, 

follow up on responses including 

review/research of city limits/ USA 

boundaries, provide assistance with 

annexations or necessary USA amendments 

Prepare and distribute island maps to cities Staff L 

Review and finalize city-conducted island 

annexations 

Ongoing, as needed Staff H 

ITEM # 7
Attachment C



PROPOSED WORK PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024 

PAGE 2 OF 6 

 

 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 

O
U

T
R

E
A

C
H

, 
G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
 /

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 R
E

L
A

T
IO

N
S

 &
  

C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 

Conduct outreach to increase awareness of 

LAFCO’s role 

 

 

 

  

Presentations to cities, other agencies on LAFCO, as 
relevant 

Distribute LAFCO communications material to elected 
officials and staff of cities, special districts and the 
County  

Seek exhibit opportunities at public spaces / events 

Maintain website as the primary information resource 
on LAFCO 

Increase social media presence (Twitter)  

Staff L 

 

M 

 

L 

H 

 
L 

Engage and establish relationships with local 

(cities, districts, county), regional 

(ABAG/MTC), state (SGC, OPR, DoC, 

SWRCB) agencies, organizations such as SDA, 

SCCAPO, CALAFCO, other stakeholder 

groups 

 

 

Attend regular meetings of SDA (quarterly), SCCAPO 
(monthly), County Planning Dept.(quarterly)  

Small water systems issues / legislation 

Collaborate with agencies and entities with goals 
common to LAFCO 

Staff M 

 
M 
 

M 

Track LAFCO related legislation  EO attends CALAFCO Legislative Committee meetings 

Commission takes positions and submits letters on 
proposed legislation 

Staff L 
 
 
 

M 

Respond to public enquiries re. LAFCO 

policies, procedures and application filing 

requirements  

Timely response to public inquiries  

Update the PRA form for the website 

Document research on complex inquiries 

Report to Commission on complex inquiries 

Staff H 

L 

L 

H 



PROPOSED WORK PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024 

PAGE 3 OF 6 

 

 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 R
E

V
IE

W
S

, 
S

P
E

C
IA

L
 S

T
U

D
IE

S
 &

  

S
P

H
E

R
E

 O
F

 I
N

F
L

U
E

N
C

E
 U

P
D

A
T

E
S

 

 

Countywide Fire Service Review Manage new consultant’s work and contract 

Coordinate TAC meetings 

Review and comment on administrative draft report  

Distribute Public hearing notices and coordinate 
community workshops and LAFCO public hearings  

Prepare and distribute stakeholder/public outreach 
material  

Coordinate stakeholder / public engagement process 
along with public comment and response process 

Prepare staff reports with implementation 
recommendations  

Follow up with agencies on implementation and 
report back to the commission  

Staff / Consultant H 

Countywide Water and Wastewater Service 

Review  

Develop water/wastewater service review workplan 
and identify method for consultant selection  

Staff M 

Continue to monitor implementation of 

recommendations from previous service 

reviews and conduct special studies, as 

necessary 

RRRPD study – city took action to delay decision on 
consolidation 

 

Staff L 

Map Mutual Water companies  Initial maps complete, further through service review Staff L 

Engage in or support grant / partnership 

opportunities on issues related to enhancing 

viability of agriculture, and climate smart 

growth  

As needed, and as opportunities arise Staff L 

Compile and post JPA filings on the LAFCO 

website 

Notice provided, gather JPA information through 
service review process  

Staff L 



PROPOSED WORK PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024 

PAGE 4 OF 6 

 

 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 

Provide ongoing support to the 12 

commissioners for regularly-scheduled 

Commission meetings, special meetings and 

Committee meetings (Finance Committee, 

and the Fire Service Review TAC)  

Prepare and distribute public hearing notices and 
agenda packets, provide staff support during the 
meetings, record minutes, broadcast meetings 

Hold pre-agenda review meeting with Chair 

Hold pre-meeting calls with individual commissioners 
to address agenda item questions and prepare 
meeting script for Chair 

Process commissioner per diems for attendance at 
LAFCO meetings 

Staff H 

Keep the Commission informed  EO report 

Off-agenda emails, as needed 

Provide ongoing educational opportunities/events  

Staff  H 

Onboarding new Commissioners  Facilitate filing / completion of Form 700, 
commissioner pledge, ethics training  

Update LAFCO letterhead, directory, and website  

Set up vendor accounts, provide parking permits 

Conduct new Commissioner orientation 

Recognize outgoing commissioners for LAFCO service  

Staff H 

Commissioners Selection Process Inform appointing bodies of any upcoming vacancies 
and provide information on appointment criteria 

Convene ISDSC committee meeting, as necessary 

Coordinate public member selection process, as 
necessary 

Staff H 

Conduct a Strategic Planning Workshop  Most recent workshop in 2018 re. LAFCO 
Communications and Outreach Plan  

Staff / Consultant L 

Commissioner participation in CALAFCO Support commissioner participation in CALAFCO 
activities / or election to the CALAFCO Board 

Staff L 



PROPOSED WORK PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024 

PAGE 5 OF 6 

 

 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Prepare LAFCO annual work plan  March –June  Staff H 

Prepare LAFCO annual budget March –June  Staff H 

Prepare LAFCO Annual Report  August 2023 Staff H 

Prepare LAFCO Annual Financial Audit October 2023 (Contract with Chavan Associates 
extended for FY 2023 and FY 2024)  

Consultant / Staff H 

Office / facility management  Coordinate with Building Manager on facilities issues  

Coordinate with County re. computers/network, 
phone, printers, office security, procurement, 
installation & maintenance  

Order and manage office supplies  

Make travel arrangements and process expense 
reimbursements. 

Process mileage reimbursements  

Office space lease extended (lease extended through 
April 30, 2027) 

Staff H 

Records management  Organize scan of LAFCO records to Electronic 
Document Management System (LaserFische) 

Maintain LAFCO’s hard copy records 

Maintain and enhance the LAFCO Website 

Maintain LAFCO database 

Staff/ Consultant 

 
 
Staff 
 

H 

 
H 

H 

H 

Contracts and payments & receivables  Track consultant contracts and approve invoices 

Approve vendor invoices / process annual payments 
for various services/ memberships  

Coordinate with County Controller’s Office and track 
annual collection of payments from member agencies 

Staff H 

Review and update LAFCO bylaws / 

administrative policies and procedures  

Ongoing, as needed Staff H 



PROPOSED WORK PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024 

PAGE 6 OF 6 

 

 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 

 

Staff training and development CALAFCO workshops, conferences, relevant courses Staff M 

Coordinate with County on administrative 

issues  

Attend monthly meetings with the Deputy County 
Executive 

Staff H 

Staff performance evaluation  April - October 2023 Staff/Commission H 

Recruitment, hiring, and training of LAFCO 

staff 

Training of new LAFCO Clerk - recruitment and hiring 
expected by end of FY 2023  

Staff H 

Student internship program  Contact the County to explore creation of a paid 
student internship program 

Staff L 

Other administrative functions mandated of a 

public agency (Form 806, maintaining 

liability/workers comp insurance, etc.)  

Ongoing  Staff H 

 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 



PROPOSED LAFCO BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2023- 2024

ITEM # TITLE

APPROVED     

BUDGET    

FY 2023  

ACTUALS 

Year to Date 

2/21/2023

 PROJECTIONS 

Year End    

FY 2023

PROPOSED 

BUDGET    

FY 2024

EXPENDITURES

Object 1: Salary and Benefits $810,419 $403,351 $719,768 $882,121 

Object 2: Services and Supplies

5255100 Intra-County Professional $10,000 $0 $10,000 $10,000

5255800 Legal Counsel $78,326 $42,043 $75,500 $82,780

5255500 Consultant  Services $150,000 $22,552 $100,000 $150,000

5285700 Meal Claims $750 $56 $300 $750

5220100 Insurance $9,237 $7,042 $9,237 $8,335

5250100 Office Expenses $5,000 $344 $2,000 $5,000

5270100 Rent & Lease $53,182 $35,272 $53,182 $54,766

5255650 Data Processing Services $28,038 $16,375 $28,038 $27,520

5225500 Commissioners' Fee $10,000 $1,900 $7,000 $10,000

5260100 Publications and Legal Notices $1,000 $308 $1,000 $1,000

5245100 Membership Dues $12,887 $12,921 $12,921 $13,870

5250750 Printing and Reproduction $1,500 $0 $500 $1,500

5285800 Business Travel $10,000 $3,125 $6,000 $15,900

5285300 Private Automobile Mileage $1,000 $7 $200 $1,000

5285200 Transportation&Travel (County Car Usage) $600 $0 $200 $600

5281600 Overhead $30,041 $15,021 $30,041 $20,358

5275200 Computer Hardware $3,000 $0 $1,000 $4,000

5250800 Computer Software $5,000 $853 $2,000 $4,000

5250250 Postage $1,000 $10 $300 $500

5252100 Staff/Commissioner Training Programs $2,000 $0 $1,000 $2,000

5701000 Reserves $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $1,222,980 $561,180 $1,060,187 $1,296,000

REVENUES

4103400 Application Fees $30,000 $19,603 $25,000 $30,000

4301100 Interest: Deposits and Investments $6,000 $4,657 $6,000 $6,000

TOTAL REVENUE $36,000 $24,260 $31,000 $36,000

3400150 FUND BALANCE FROM PREVIOUS FY $201,006 $410,027 $410,027 $366,814

NET LAFCO OPERATING EXPENSES $985,974 $126,893 $619,160 $893,186

3400800 RESERVES Available $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000

 COSTS TO AGENCIES

5440200 County $328,658 $328,658 $328,658 $297,729

4600100 Cities (San Jose 50% + Other Cities 50%) $328,658 $328,658 $328,658 $297,729

4600100 Special Districts $328,658 $328,658 $328,658 $297,729

February 23, 2023

ITEM # 7
Attachment D





$893,186

JURISDICTION
REVENUE PER 

2020/2021 REPORT

PERCENTAGE OF 

TOTAL REVENUE

ALLOCATION 

PERCENTAGES

ALLOCATED 

COSTS

County N/A N/A 33.3333333% $297,728.67 

Cities Total Share 33.3333333% $297,728.67 

San Jose N/A N/A 50.0000000% $148,864.34 

Other cities share 50.0000000% $148,864.33 

Campbell $67,824,629 1.9995536% $2,976.62 

Cupertino $125,426,339 3.6977230% $5,504.59 

Gilroy $131,638,480 3.8808646% $5,777.22 

Los Altos $61,718,303 1.8195316% $2,708.63 

Los Altos Hills $19,614,107 0.5782480% $860.81 

Los Gatos $51,370,842 1.5144757% $2,254.51 

Milpitas $186,509,610 5.4985331% $8,185.35 

Monte Sereno $4,845,074 0.1428388% $212.64 

Morgan Hill $113,620,439 3.3496705% $4,986.46 

Mountain View $373,855,966 11.0217345% $16,407.43 

Palo Alto $664,162,959 19.5803423% $29,148.15 

Santa Clara $1,000,850,828 29.5063155% $43,924.39 

Saratoga $35,690,808 1.0522090% $1,566.36 

Sunnyvale $554,860,115 16.3579598% $24,351.17 

Total Cities (excluding San Jose) $3,391,988,499 100.0000000% $148,864.33 

Total Cities (including San Jose) $297,728.67

Special Districts Total Share (Fixed %) 33.3333333% $297,728.66 

Aldercroft Heights County Water District 0.06233% $185.57 

Burbank Sanitary District 0.15593% $464.25 

Cupertino Sanitary District 2.64110% $7,863.31 

El Camino Healthcare District 4.90738% $14,610.68 

Guadalupe Coyote Resource Conservation District 0.04860% $144.70 

Lake Canyon Community Services District 0.02206% $65.68 

Lion's Gate Community Services District 0.22053% $656.58 

Loma Prieta Resource Conservation District 0.02020% $60.14 

Midpeninsula Regional Open Space District 5.76378% $17,160.42 

Purissima Hills Water District 1.35427% $4,032.05 

Rancho Rinconada Recreation and Park District 0.15988% $476.01 

San Martin County Water District 0.04431% $131.92 

Santa Clara Valley Open Space Authority 1.27051% $3,782.67 

Santa Clara Valley Water District 81.44126% $242,473.98 

Saratoga Cemetery District 0.32078% $955.05 

Saratoga Fire Protection District 1.52956% $4,553.94 

South Santa Clara Valley Memorial District 0.03752% $111.71 

Total Special Districts 100.00000% $297,728.66

Total Allocated Costs $893,186.00

LAFCO COST APPORTIONMENT: COUNTY, CITIES, SPECIAL DISTRICTS
Estimated Costs to Agencies Based on the Preliminary FY 2024 LAFCO Budget

March 22, 2023

Preliminary Net Operating Expenses for FY 2024

ITEM # 7
Attachment E





 
 

PAGE 1 OF 3 

ITEM # 8 

LAFCO MEETING: April 5, 2023 

TO:    LAFCO 

FROM:  Neelima Palacherla, Executive Officer  
   Dunia Noel, Asst. Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Appointment of Public Member and Alternate Public 
Member 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Interview, select, and appoint a public member and an alternate public member to 
LAFCO, to each serve a four-year term from June 2023 through May 2027. 

BACKGROUND 
Chairperson Susan Vicklund Wilson currently serves as the Public Member and her 
4-year term on LAFCO will expire on May 31, 2023. Alternate Commissioner Terry 
Trumbull currently serves as Alternate Public Member and his 4-year term on 
LAFCO will expire on May 31, 2023.  

At the February 1, 2023, the Commission directed LAFCO staff to initiate the process 
in accordance with the LAFCO Bylaws that would enable the Commission to select 
and appoint a public member and an alternate public member at the April 5, 2023 
LAFCO meeting. 

LAFCO’s Bylaws require the solicitation of candidates. On February 28, 2023, an 
announcement/request for applications for public member and alternate public 
member (Attachment A) was posted on the LAFCO website and circulated to local 
agencies, other local stakeholder groups, and interested parties. The announcement 
indicated that applications were due on March 14, 2023. This report provides an 
overview of the candidates and the selection process. 
Eligible Applicants 
Applicants for the public member and alternate public member positions must be 
Santa Clara County residents. The public member and alternate public member 
appointees are prohibited by State law from concurrently being an officer or 
employee of the county, or any city or district with territory in the county. Residents 
of cities already represented on the commission may not fill these positions. 
Therefore, residents of the cities of San Jose, Sunnyvale and Morgan Hill may not be 
considered at this time. Additionally, the appointees shall not concurrently hold any 



PAGE 2 OF 3 

elected or appointed office with a local government agency that makes or informs 
land use decisions while serving on LAFCO. The current public member and 
alternate public member are eligible to apply. 

LAFCO received six applications before the deadline. 

It is LAFCO staff’s determination that the following five candidates meet the 
eligibility provisions to become a public member or alternate public member on the 
Commission: 

• Jane Howard (seeking Public Member or Alternate Public Member) 

• Jerry Karp (seeking Public Member) 

• Teresa O’Neill (seeking Alternate Public Member) 

• Jake Tonkel (seeking Alternate Public Member) 

• Terry Trumbull, Current Alternate Public Member, (seeking Public Member 
or Alternate Public Member) 

 
List of candidates for Public Member and Alternate Public Member 

Public Member  Alternate Public Member  

Jane Howard Jane Howard 

Jerry Karp Teresa O’Neill 

Terry Trumbull Jake Tonkel 

 Terry Trumbull 

 

LAFCO also received an application from David Heindel, who stated that they are a 
resident of the City of San Jose. LAFCO staff has informed Mr. Heindel that the 
Commission is unable to consider his application because San Jose residents are not 
eligible for the position, as noted in the recruitment announcement.  

Please see Attachment B for copies of each of the five eligible candidates’ 
applications, which includes information on their qualifications, local government 
and community experience, and reasons for seeking the appointment(s). 

At the meeting, staff will provide a draft set of interview questions for the 
Commission’s consideration. The Commission will finalize the interview questions 
and interview each of the candidates using the set of questions. The Commission 
will then appoint, by majority vote, a public member and an alternate public 
member. Government Code §56325(d) states that the public member is “appointed 
by the other members of the Commission,” therefore, Chairperson Vicklund Wilson, 
as the current Public Member of the Commission, is not eligible to vote this process. 



PAGE 3 OF 3 

NEXT STEPS 
Once appointed, LAFCO staff will work with the public member and alternate public 
member to complete the requisite onboarding process, including receiving a LAFCO 
orientation session. The public member’s and alternate public member’s first LAFCO 
meeting will be June 7, 2023. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A: Recruitment Announcement for Public Member and Alternate 

Public Member  

Attachment B: Public Member and Alternate Public Member Applications 

 

 





PAGE 1 OF 2 

RECRUITMENT OF PUBLIC MEMBER AND ALTERNATE PUBLIC MEMBER 

LAFCO PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY 

Santa Clara LAFCO is a state mandated independent local agency established to 
oversee the boundaries of cities and special districts within the county. Santa Clara 
LAFCO’s mission is to promote sustainable growth and good governance in the 
county by preserving agricultural and open space lands, preventing urban sprawl, 
and encouraging efficient delivery of services.  

LAFCO regulates jurisdictional and planning boundaries of cities and special 
districts including city / district annexations, detachments, dissolutions, mergers, 
consolidations and urban service area amendments. LAFCO also has regulatory 
authority over service extensions outside city and district jurisdictional boundaries. 
LAFCO plans for orderly growth and development through its service review 
program and sphere of influence updates. LAFCO works for the good of the whole 
county – protecting natural resource lands while facilitating development of vibrant 
communities.   

LAFCO COMPOSITION 

Santa Clara LAFCO is composed of seven commissioners including two County 
supervisors appointed by the Board of Supervisors; one council member from the 
City of San Jose, appointed by the San Jose City Council; one council member from 
any of the other 14 cities, appointed by the City Selection Committee; two Board 
Members from independent special districts, one appointed by the Independent Special 
District Selection Committee; and by agreement amongst the districts, one appointed by 
the Santa Clara Valley Water District; and one public member appointed by the above 
six members of the Commission.  

Five alternate commissioners are appointed, one for each of the categories to serve 
and vote in place of the regular member if the regular member is absent or is 
disqualified from voting. Alternate members are expected and encouraged to attend 
and participate in all LAFCO meetings, even if the regular member is present.  

LAFCO MEETINGS 

Santa Clara LAFCO typically meets on the first Wednesday of even months at 1:15 
p.m. Meetings are held at the County Government Center located at 70 West
Hedding Street in San Jose. Special meetings and subcommittee meetings are
calendared as needed. LAFCO commissioners receive a per diem of $100 for
attendance at LAFCO meetings. Commissioners are required to comply with FPPC
disclosure regulations and file annual statements of financial interests.

ITEM # 8
Attachment A



PAGE 2 OF 2 
 

ELIGIBILITY PROVISIONS 

Applicants for the public member and alternate public member positions 
must be Santa Clara County residents. The public member and alternate 
public member appointees are prohibited by State law from concurrently 
being an officer or employee of the county, or any city or district with 
territory in the county. Residents of cities already represented on the 
commission may not fill these positions. Therefore, residents of the cities of 
San Jose, Sunnyvale and Morgan Hill may not be considered at this time. 
Additionally, the appointees shall not concurrently hold any elected or 
appointed office with a local government agency that makes or informs land 
use decisions while serving on LAFCO. 

Persons interested in the position of Public Member and/or Alternate Public 
Member should email a letter of interest and a completed application form to 
LAFCO@ceo.sccgov.org no later than Tuesday, March 14, 2023, at 5:00 p.m.  

Interviews for public member and alternate public member positions are 
anticipated to be held at the April 5, 2023 LAFCO meeting.   

MORE INFORMATION 

More information on LAFCO is available on its website at 
www.SantaClaraLAFCO.org and in the What is LAFCO? Brochure.  

Should you have questions or need assistance submitting this application, please 
contact LAFCO staff by email at LAFCO@ceo.sccgov.org or by phone at (408) 993 
4704. 

APPLICATION FORM 

The application form is available in the following two formats: 
• PDF (Fillable) Application Form 
• Word (Fillable) Application Form 

 
 
 

mailto:LAFCO@ceo.sccgov.org
http://www.santaclaralafco.org/
https://www.santaclaralafco.org/sites/default/files/LAFCO_Brochure_Aug2019.pdf
mailto:LAFCO@ceo.sccgov.org
https://santaclaralafco.org/sites/default/files/LAFCO%20Public%20Member%20Application%20Form.pdf
https://santaclaralafco.org/sites/default/files/LAFCO%20Public%20Member%20Application%20Form.docx


ITEM # 8
Attachment B



ITEM # 8
Attachment B























































 
 

PAGE 1 OF 2 

ITEM # 9 
 

LAFCO MEETING: April 5, 2026 

TO:    LAFCO 

FROM:  Neelima Palacherla, Executive Officer  
   Dunia Noel, Asst. Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: UPDATE ON COUNTYWIDE FIRE SERVICE REVIEW  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
1. Appoint one LAFCO Commissioner to serve on the Countywide Fire Service 

Review Technical Advisory Committee in place of Commissioner Vicklund 
Wilson, whose term on LAFCO ends May 31, 2023. 

2. Accept report and provide direction, as necessary. 

COUNTYWIDE FIRE SERVICE REVIEW 
The report provides a summary of the service review related work that has been 
completed since the February 1, 2023 LAFCO meeting and the anticipated next 
steps. 

AGENCY PROFILES AND VERIFICATION  
AP Triton (LAFCO’s Consultant) has completed data collection and is in the process 
of preparing profiles for the affected agencies and has begun sending these affected 
agencies their draft profile for verification.  

AP Triton is in the process of conducting their analysis and preparing their findings. 

FEBRUARY 2023 TAC MEETING TO DISCUSS PRELIMINARY FINDINGS 
The Countywide Fire Service Review Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), which 
includes LAFCO Commissioners Kishimoto and Vicklund Wilson; Fire Chiefs 
Kerdkaew, Torres, and Wyatt; and City Managers Lindsay, Turner, and Shikada, held 
its second meeting on February 17, 2023. TAC meetings are open to the public and 
LAFCO staff regularly notifies local agencies, other affected stakeholders, and 
interested parties about upcoming TAC meetings. 

At TAC Meeting #2, AP Triton provided an update on the preparation of agency 
profiles and service provider validation of profiles. EO Palacherla informed the 
group about further opportunities for the public, community, and stakeholders to 
provide input on the Countywide Fire Service Review. AP Triton’s Team presented 



PAGE 2 OF 2 

their preliminary findings, which are posted on the LAFCO website. EO Palacherla 
then informed the group about the next steps in the service review process. A third 
TAC Meeting is expected to be held in late April (Date TBD) to further review and 
discuss AP Triton’s findings.  

NEXT STEPS 
The following are the remaining key steps and timeline for completing the 
Countywide Fire Service Review: 

• TAC Meeting #3 to further review and discuss AP Triton’s findings: Late April 
(Date TBD) 

• LAFCO releases Draft Report for public review and comment: May 

• Community workshops on Draft Report: June - July 

• LAFCO public hearing on Draft Report: Early August 

• LAFCO releases Revised Draft Report for public review and comment: Late 
August  

• LAFCO public hearing to adopt Final Report: Early October 

• Publication of Adopted Final Report: October 

Staff will continue to provide the Commission with updates on this project as it 
progresses. 

 

https://santaclaralafco.org/sites/default/files/meetings/Agenda%20Packet%20TAC%20Meeting%20%232%20-%2017Feb2023.pdf


 
 

PAGE 1 OF 2 

ITEM # 10 

LAFCO MEETING: April 5, 2023 

TO:    LAFCO 

FROM:  Neelima Palacherla, Executive Officer  
   Dunia Noel, Asst. Executive Officer  

SUBJECT: AMENDMENT TO MOU BETWEEN COUNTY OF SANTA 
CLARA AND LAFCO OF SANTA CLARA REGARDING 
WEBCASTING SERVICES FOR LAFCO MEETINGS   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the proposed amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
between County of Santa Clara and LAFCO of Santa Clara regarding the County’s 
provision of webcasting services for LAFCO meetings held in the County Board 
Chambers, extending the term, and updating the rates for reimbursable expenses.  

BACKGROUND  
At the February 5, 2020 LAFCO meeting, the Commission directed staff to work with 
the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors (COB) to develop a Memorandum 
of Understanding (MOU) between LAFCO and the County to allow use of the 
County’s Agenda Management System (AMS) with integrated webcasting 
capabilities, and the webcasting equipment in the County Board Chambers, to 
webcast LAFCO meetings. At the February 3, 2021 LAFCO meeting, the Commission 
approved said MOU. However, implementation of the MOU was delayed until April 
2023, when LAFCO resumed in-person meetings in the County Board Chambers. The 
term of the current MOU will expire on June 30, 2023. Therefore, LAFCO Legal 
Counsel, in consultation with County Counsel, has drafted an amendment to the 
MOU (Attachment A) for the Commission’s consideration and approval, which 
would extend the term of the current MOU to June 30, 2026, an additional three-
years and update the rates for reimbursable expenses. 

Webcasting LAFCO meetings provides county residents and interested members of 
the public the ability to watch webcasts of LAFCO meetings on the internet and 
promotes transparency and public engagement. 



PAGE 2 OF 2 

NEXT STEPS 
Following Commission approval, the Amendment to the MOU will be forwarded to 
the County Procurement Department for signature.  

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A: Amendment No. 1 to MOU between County of Santa Clara and 

LAFCO of Santa Clara regarding webcasting services in County 
Board of Supervisors Chambers 

Attachment B:  MOU between County of Santa Clara and LAFCO of Santa Clara 
regarding webcasting in the County Board of Supervisors 
Chambers (executed on February 5, 2021) 



Page 1 of 2 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 
TO THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF SANTA 
CLARA AND THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF SANTA CLARA 

REGARDING WEBCASTING IN THE COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ 
CHAMBERS  

This Amendment No. 1 to the Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is made and entered 
into as of this ___ day of ____________, 2023, by and between the County of Santa Clara, a 
political subdivision of the State of California (the “County”), and the Local Agency Formation 
Commission of Santa Clara County, an independent local agency created pursuant to Cal. Gov. Code 
§56325 (“LAFCO”) . County and LAFCO are sometimes individually referred to as (“Party”) and
collectively as (“Parties”).

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the  County And LAFCO entered into the MOU in January 2021 so that 
individuals would have the ability to observe and participate in webcasts of LAFCO meetings on the 
internet; and   

WHEREAS, the Parties desire the amend the MOU to extend the term and increase the rates 
for reimbursable expenses.   

NOW, THEREFORE, the County and LAFCO hereby agree as follows: 

1. Exhibit B. Exhibit B of the MOU is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as set
forth in the attached Exhibit B.

2. Term.  Section 2.1 of the MOU is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:

“2.1 Term.  This MOU shall be effective as of the date hereof and will 
terminate on June 30, 2026 unless (a) earlier terminated pursuant to 
Section 2.2 or (b) extended pursuant to Section 2.3.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, no Services shall be provided or any Reimbursable Expenses 
incurred prior to the occurrence of the first Meeting taking place in the 
Chambers.” 

3. Continuing Effect of MOU.  Except as amended by this Amendment No. 1, all
other provisions of the MOU remain in full force and effect and shall remain binding
upon the Parties.  From and after the date of this Amendment No. 1, whenever the term
“MOU” appears in the MOU, it shall mean the MOU as amended by this Amendment
No. 1.

4. Severability.  If any portion of this Amendment No. 1 is declared invalid, illegal, or
otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall
continue in full force and effect.

ITEM # 10
Attachment A



Page 2 of 2 

5.   Counterparts.  This Amendment No. 1 may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall 
constitute an original. 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and LAFCO have executed this Amendment No. 1 to 
the MOU as follows:  

 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION 
COMMISSION OF SANTA CLARA 
COUNTY 
 
 
 
      
Name:  Susan Vicklund Wilson   
Title:  LAFCO Chairperson 
Date:   
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
 
       
Name:  Malathy Subramanian 
Title:  LAFCO Counsel 
Date:  

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA 
 
 
 
 
 
       
Name: Matthew Hada 
Title:  Director of Procurement  
Date:   
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGALITY 
 
 
       
Name:  Robert D. Fannion 
Title:  Deputy County Counsel  
Date:  

 



SERVICE COST PER 
HOUR

 COST PER 
MEETING NOTES

COB Hourly Productive Rate - 
Broadcast Equipment

$105.00 $105.00 Hourly cost for use and maintenance of 
shared equipment. Charged at only one 
hour per meegting. 

COB Hourly Productive Rate - 
Agenda Management System 
(AMS) - Optional

$105.00 $105.00 Hourly cost for use of agenda manament 
software. Charged at only one hour per 
meegting. 

Technology Services and 
Solutions Department – 
Multimedia Team

$234.00 $702.00 Onsite management of integrated Zoom 
broadcast. Includes 1-hour setup time.

CreaTV Camera Operator $105.00 $420.00 Two camera operators required. Vendor 
requires 2-hour minimum

CreaTV Production Coordinator $52.50 $52.50 Production coordination costs, including  
creation of  graphics. Charged at only 
one hour per meegting. 

Dynamic Captioning - Optional $105.00 $210.00 Remote real-time closed captioning 
production by human captioner. Vendor 
requires a 2-hour minimum.

Cost Per Meeting - All Services : $1,594.50 (with AMS and Captioning)

Cost per meeting - No AMS: $1,489.50 (with Captioning)

Cost per meeting - No AMS or Captioning: $1,279.50 

PASS-THROUGH SERVICE COSTS FOR WEBCAST-RELATED 
FY24 STAFFING AND EQUIPMENT USE 

Exhibit B

Note: The rates above are based on current pass-through costs for two-hour meetings.  LAFCO will be charged a standard 
per meeting rate, depending on the types of services utilized.  By June 15 of each fiscal year, Clerk of the Board will bill 
LAFCO based on the actual number of meetings held in the prior 12 month period.  Payment is due by June 30.  LAFCO will 
be informed of any anticipated changes to estimated costs for the upcoming fiscal year by March 31.





Execution Version 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA AND 

THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF SANTA CLARA REGARDING 

WEBCASTING IN THE COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS' CHAMBERS 

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is made and entered into as of January [•] 2021 (the 

“Effective Date”), by and between the County of Santa Clara, a political subdivision of the State of 

California (the “County”), and the Local Agency Formation Commission of Santa Clara County, an 

independent local agency created pursuant to Cal. Gov. Code §56325 (“LAFCO”, and together with the 

County, the “Parties”).  

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, LAFCO wishes to ensure that residents of the County have the ability to observe and 

participate in webcasts of LAFCO meetings on the internet;  

WHEREAS, LAFCO meetings are currently held in the County of Santa Clara Government Center 

Board of Supervisors' Chambers (the “Chambers”);  

WHEREAS, the County currently has equipment and service contracts with media services firms 

(such firms collectively, including (i) any subcontractors of such firms and (ii) any other firms (and 

subcontractors of such firms) that may provide the same or similar services to the County in the future, are 

referred to herein as the “Contractors”) to webcast meetings of the Board of Supervisors of the County (the 

“Board”) taking place in the Chambers;  

WHEREAS, the County desires, subject to the terms and conditions of this MOU, to facilitate the 

webcasting of LAFCO meetings in the Chambers.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, the County and LAFCO hereby agree as follows: 

1. Provision of Webcasting Services

1.1. Webcasting of Meetings.

a. In exchange for the consideration set forth in Section 1.2 and subject to the terms of this

MOU, the County agrees to direct the Contractors and the County’s Technology Services &

Solutions Department (“TSS”) to provide webcasting services substantially equivalent to

those set forth in Exhibit A hereto (the “Services”) for LAFCO meetings (each, a “Meeting”)

held in the Chambers and to allow LAFCO and the Contractors to use all equipment in the

Chambers that is necessary or convenient for the provision of the Services.

b. LAFCO shall have the option, with respect to each Meeting, to utilize all of the Services or

only those of the Services required by LAFCO at such Meeting.

c. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the Contractors and Services set forth in Exhibit A

are subject to change in the ordinary course at the reasonable discretion of the County.

Exhibit A is intended by the Parties to provide current details of the Services and not bind the

County to employ any particular Contractors or exact manner of webcasting the Meetings.

1.2. Reimbursement.  Subject to the terms of this MOU, LAFCO will fully reimburse the County for 

all expenses associated with the provision of the Services (“Reimbursable Expenses”) at the rates 

set forth in Exhibit B or at other rates actually incurred by the County.  Reimbursable Expenses 

shall also include the reasonable replacement or repair costs of any damage to (a) the Chambers, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0D7BAA3C-8963-46E2-82A0-7F2806A711C6DocuSign Envelope ID: A71433F1-4B2F-4E28-8453-0F3D648C8DCF ITEM # 10   
Attachment B



(b) any County equipment, or (c) any equipment belonging to the Contractors that may be incurred 

while providing the Services as a result of any negligence or willful misconduct by LAFCO.  

a. The County shall deliver statements (each, a “Reimbursement Statement”) setting forth 

Reimbursable Expenses to LAFCO not more than 45 days after June 30 of each year during 

the Term (as defined in Section 2.1) or at other times mutually agreed by the Parties.  Upon 

receipt of a Reimbursement Statement, LAFCO shall within 45 days deposit or cause to be 

deposited the full undisputed amount set forth on such Reimbursement Statement to an 

account designated by the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of the County (the “Clerk”). 

b. If any element of the Reimbursable Expenses set forth on a Reimbursement Statement is 

disputed by LAFCO, LAFCO shall inform the Clerk of such dispute within 30 days of receipt 

of such Reimbursement Statement.  The Parties shall make good faith efforts to resolve any 

disputed Reimbursable Expenses.  In connection with any such dispute, LAFCO may request 

that the Clerk provide reasonable documentation of Reimbursable Expenses, including any 

changes to the costs set forth on Exhibit B.   

2. Term and Termination 

2.1. Term.  This MOU shall be effective as of the date hereof and will terminate on June 30, 2023 

unless (a) earlier terminated pursuant to Section 2.2 or (b) extended pursuant to Section 2.3.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Services shall be provided or any Reimbursable Expenses 

incurred prior to the occurrence of the first Meeting taking place in the Chambers. 

2.2. Termination.   

a. At any time during the Term and subject to the terms of Section 2.4, either Party may 

terminate this MOU for any reason upon 30 days written notice delivered to the other Party.   

b. If for any reason one or more of the Contractors cease providing webcasting services to the 

County (a “Contractor Termination”), the County shall have the right to terminate this MOU 

immediately upon notice to LAFCO.  If the County does not terminate this MOU upon such 

Contractor Termination, the Parties shall make good faith efforts to agree to a replacement 

for the Contractor no longer providing services and this MOU shall continue in force as 

provided in this Section 2.  

2.3. Extension.  At any time not less than 90 days prior to the end of the Term, LAFCO may deliver to 

the County a written request to extend this MOU (an “Extension Request”).  Upon written 

agreement to such request by the Clerk on behalf of the County, the term shall be extended by the 

period of time agreed by the Parties in the Extension Request, which period shall not exceed 5 

years.  

2.4. Termination Expenses.  Upon the conclusion of the Term or when this MOU is terminated as 

provided in Section 2.2, the County shall within 90 days of such termination deliver to LAFCO a 

Reimbursement Statement including a.) all Reimbursable Expenses incurred prior to such 

termination and b.) any reasonable costs incurred by TSS for removing any LAFCO equipment 

and materials from the Chambers. 

2.5. Survival.  Notwithstanding the termination of this MOU as provided in this Section 2, the terms 

of Section 1.2 shall survive such termination with respect to any Reimbursable Expenses provided 

in Section 2.4, Section 4 shall survive with respect to any Claims incurred prior to such 

termination, Section 7.5 shall survive with respect to any cause of action arising from this MOU, 

and Section 7.7 shall survive with respect to any alleged causes of action taking place prior to the 

termination of this MOU.   

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0D7BAA3C-8963-46E2-82A0-7F2806A711C6DocuSign Envelope ID: A71433F1-4B2F-4E28-8453-0F3D648C8DCF



3. Use of the Chambers  

3.1. County Priority.  Subject to the terms of this Section 3 and subject to all County policies, rules, 

and codes with respect to the use of the Chambers and County property, including without 

limitation any applicable health or safety rules (“County Rules”), the County shall allow LAFCO 

to use the Chambers for meetings during those times that the County determines the Chambers are 

not otherwise being used for the business of the County.   

a. The County shall make reasonable efforts to make the Chambers available for all Meetings.  

To facilitate scheduling by the County, LAFCO shall provide the Clerk with reasonable 

advanced notice of all planned Meetings to be conducted in the Chambers.   

b. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 3.1(a), the Clerk may pre-empt any Meeting in the 

event of a conflict with any scheduled or emergency meeting of the Board or other County 

entity that the Clerk reasonably determines will require the use of the Chambers. 

c. In the event of any pre-emption of a Meeting pursuant to Section 3.1(b), the Parties shall work 

cooperatively to arrange a reasonable alternate time for the use of the Chambers for such 

Meeting.   

3.2. Condition of the Chambers. 

a. At the conclusion of each Meeting taking place in the Chambers, LAFCO shall use reasonable 

efforts to reset hardware and/or software and, as applicable, return settings to the 

configuration normally used by TSS or the Contractors.  To the extent reasonably necessary, 

the Parties shall cooperate to develop technical procedural documents to be used by LAFCO 

personnel in connection with the Services and their obligations under this Section 3.2(a).  The 

Parties shall reasonably divide the costs associated with developing any technical manuals or 

procedures required by this Section 3.2(a). 

b. LAFCO shall use the Chambers only for public meetings related to the purposes set forth in 

Cal. Gov. Code § 56300 (et seq.) and shall not use or permit the Chambers to be used for any 

other purpose or by any other entity without the prior written consent of County.  LAFCO 

agrees to fully reimburse the County as provided in Section 1.2 for any damage to the 

Chambers or other expenses incurred as a result of any violation of this Section 3.2(b). 

c. LAFCO agrees to comply with all County Rules when using the Chambers and any County 

equipment.  In addition to any other legal or civil liability for violation of County Rules, 

LAFCO shall be responsible for any reasonable costs or expenses that arise as a result of a 

failure to comply with County Rules (including without limitation any reasonable attorneys’ 

fees or legal expenses arising from such failure), and any such undisputed costs or expenses 

shall be considered Reimbursable Expenses hereunder and reimbursed by LAFCO pursuant 

to the terms of Section 1.2.   

 

4. Indemnification 

In lieu of and notwithstanding the pro rata risk allocation which might otherwise be imposed between 

the Parties pursuant to Cal. Gov. Code § 895.6, the County and LAFCO agree that all losses or liabilities 

incurred by a party shall not be shared pro rata but instead the County and LAFCO agree that, pursuant 

to Cal. Gov. Code § 895.4, each of the parties hereto shall fully indemnify and hold the other Party, its 

officers, Board members, employees and agents, harmless from any claim, expense or cost, damage or 

liability imposed for injury (as defined by Cal. Gov. Code § 810.8) occurring by reason of the negligent 

acts or omissions or willful misconduct of the indemnifying Party, its officers, Board members, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0D7BAA3C-8963-46E2-82A0-7F2806A711C6DocuSign Envelope ID: A71433F1-4B2F-4E28-8453-0F3D648C8DCF



employees or agents, under or in connection with or arising out of any work, authority or jurisdiction 

delegated to such party under this Agreement (“Claims”).  No Party, nor any officer, Board member, 

employee or agent thereof shall be responsible for any damage or liability occurring by reason of the 

negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of the other Party hereto, its officers, Board members, 

employees or agents, under or in connection with or arising out of any work, authority or jurisdiction 

delegated to such other parties under this MOU.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, LAFCO agrees to 

defend and indemnify the County in any lawsuit or legal action brought by the Contractors related 

specifically to the use of the Chambers by LAFCO or the provision of the Services by the Contractors 

for LAFCO. 

 

5. Insurance 

Without limiting the indemnification obligations of either party under Section 4 of this MOU, each 

party shall maintain or cause to be maintained the following insurance coverage: (1) a policy of 

commercial general liability with limits of liability not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence and two million dollars ($2,000,000) annual aggregate; (ii) a policy of workers’ 

compensation providing statutory coverage; (iii) a policy of public officials errors and omissions 

liability with limits of liability not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence/aggregate; 

and (iv) such other insurance or self-insurance as shall be necessary to insure it against any claim or 

claims for damages arising under this MOU.  Insurance afforded by the commercial general liability 

policy of a Party shall be endorsed to provide coverage to the other Party as an additional insured.   Each 

Party shall provide a Certificate of Insurance certifying that coverage as required herein has been 

obtained.  The requirements of this Section 5 may be satisfied by the provision of similar coverage 

through a self-insurance program. 

 

6. Notices 

Notices to the parties in connection with this Agreement shall be made by certified mail, return receipt 

requested.  Notices are effective upon the earlier of five (5) days after placement in the U.S. mail, 

postage paid or when actually received by a Party.  Notices shall be sent to the following: 

 

County: 

Office of the Clerk-Board of Supervisors 

Attn:  Administrative Services Manager 

County Government Center 

70 West Hedding Street, East Wing, 10th Floor 

San Jose, CA 95110 

 

LAFCO: 

Neelima Palacherla, LAFCO Executive Officer 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Santa Clara County 

777 North First Street, Suite 410 

San Jose, CA 95112 

 

7. Miscellaneous 

7.1. Entire Agreement; Amendment.  This MOU and the Exhibits hereto constitute the entire 

agreement among the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior 

agreements and understandings, written and oral, among the Parties with respect to the subject 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0D7BAA3C-8963-46E2-82A0-7F2806A711C6DocuSign Envelope ID: A71433F1-4B2F-4E28-8453-0F3D648C8DCF



matter hereof.  This MOU may be amended only by a written instrument executed by the Parties 

hereto. 

7.2. Execution and Effectiveness.  This MOU shall be binding on the County and LAFCO from the 

Effective Date.  Unless otherwise prohibited by law, the parties agree that an electronic copy of a 

signed MOU, or an electronically signed MOU, has the same force and legal effect as an MOU 

executed with an original ink signature.  The term “electronic copy of a signed MOU” refers to a 

transmission by facsimile, electronic mail, or other electronic means of a copy of an original signed 

MOU in a portable document format.  The term “electronically signed MOU” means an MOU that 

is executed by applying an electronic signature suing technology approved by the County. 

7.3. Representations.  The persons executing this MOU represent that they have authority to bind their 

respective Parties. 

7.4. Third Party Beneficiaries.  This MOU does not, and is not intended to, confer any rights or 

remedies upon any person or entity other than the Parties. 

7.5. Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction.  The Parties agree that this MOU was executed in and 

shall be governed by the laws of the State of California, without regard to its conflicts of law 

principles, including the application of any applicable statutes of limitations and equitable 

principles and the availability of any remedies.  The Parties further agree to submit to the 

jurisdiction of the courts located in Santa Clara County, California. 

7.6. Assignment.  Neither Party may assign this MOU or such Party’s rights and obligations hereunder 

without the prior written consent of the other Party. 

7.7. Compliance with Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity Laws.  The Parties shall comply 

with all applicable laws concerning nondiscrimination and equal opportunity in the use of the 

Chambers and in all related employment and contracting, including but not limited to the 

following: Santa Clara County’s policies for contractors on nondiscrimination and equal 

opportunity; Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended; Americans with Disabilities 

Act of 1990; the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967; the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

(Sections 503 and 504); the Equal Pay Act of 1963; California Fair Employment and Housing Act 

(Gov. Code § 12900 et seq.); California Labor Code sections 1101, 1102, and 1197.5; and the 

Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008. In addition to the foregoing, the Parties shall 

not discriminate against any subcontractor, employee, or applicant for employment because of 

age, race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, sex, gender identity, gender expression, sexual 

orientation, mental disability, physical disability, medical condition, political belief, 

organizational affiliation, or marital status in the recruitment, selection for training (including but 

not limited to apprenticeship), hiring, employment, assignment, promotion, layoff, rates of pay or 

other forms of compensation.  The Parties shall not discriminate in the use of the Chambers or the 

provision of the Services because of age, race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, sex, gender 

identity, gender expression, sexual orientation, mental disability, physical disability, medical 

condition, political beliefs, organizational affiliations, or marital status.  LAFCO acknowledges 

that its nondiscrimination obligations extend to LAFCO’s policies and procedures in conducting 

Meetings in the Chambers, including obligations regarding effective communication with persons 

with disabilities, and acknowledges that the indemnification provisions in Section 4 of this 

agreement include claims arising out of applicable nondiscrimination laws.  

 

[Signature Page Follows] 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0D7BAA3C-8963-46E2-82A0-7F2806A711C6DocuSign Envelope ID: A71433F1-4B2F-4E28-8453-0F3D648C8DCF



 

[Signature Page to Memorandum of Understanding between Santa Clara County and the Local Agency Formation 

Commission of Santa Clara County] 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and LAFCO have executed this MOU as of the dates set 

forth below.  

 

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION 

COMMISSION OF SANTA CLARA 

COUNTY 

 

 

 

By: __________________________   By: _____________________________ 

Name: Cheryl Liu     Name: Susan Ellenberg 

Title:    Director of Procurement    Title:  Chairperson, Santa Clara LAFCO 

Date: February 5, 2021    Date:   February 5, 2021 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM     APPROVED AS TO FORM  

AND LEGALITY  

 

 

 

By: _________________________   By: _________________________  

Name:  Robert D. Fannion    Name:  Malathy Subramanian 

Title:    Deputy County Counsel    Title:    LAFCO Counsel 

Date:     February 5, 2021    Date:    February 5, 2021 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0D7BAA3C-8963-46E2-82A0-7F2806A711C6DocuSign Envelope ID: A71433F1-4B2F-4E28-8453-0F3D648C8DCF

Marlon Paulo, 
Deputy Director of Procurement for
Cheryl Liu 



 

 

Exhibit A 

SPECIFICATIONS 

 

SOFTWARE 

• LAFCO may upload and publish its meetings to the internet using the IQM2 

software application (MinuteTraq), under the County of Santa Clara’s licensing 

agreement with IQM2. 

 

HARDWARE 

• LAFCO may access IQM2 in Chambers using a County-owned laptop. 

• LAFCO may stream its meetings to the internet using the County-owned equipment. 

• LAFCO may caption LAFCO meetings using the County's closed caption encoder and 

phone interface system 

• LAFCO shall be responsible for any archiving of LAFCO webcasts. No County 

equipment will be used for this purpose. 

 

INTERNET ACCESS & SECURITY 

• The identity and contact information of the LAFCO personnel that will access the 

Chambers control room to manage and operate the County laptop and webcast encoder 

shall be communicated to the Clerk of the Board's designated information technology 

support personnel in advance of access. 

• LAFCO will employ reasonable and industry standard precautions to protect 

County information technology assets and prevent unauthorized access to County 

information technology. 

• County shall allocate IP addresses for LAFCO use in Chambers, as necessary. 

• County reserves right to implement any and all network security protocols it sees fit to reasonably 

maintain the integrity of its network and data. 

 

FUTURE UPGRADES 

• The above specifications reflect required compatibility/technical standards necessary at the 

time this Agreement is put into effect. County reserves the right to modify these 

specifications over time as may be necessary to operate with future equipment upgrades. 

That notwithstanding, County shall make reasonable efforts to work with LAFCO staff to 

determine new requirements. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0D7BAA3C-8963-46E2-82A0-7F2806A711C6DocuSign Envelope ID: A71433F1-4B2F-4E28-8453-0F3D648C8DCF



 

 

Exhibit B 

PASS-THROUGH SERVICE COSTS FOR WEBCAST-RELATED  

STAFFING AND EQUIPMENT USE 

 

SERVICE COST PER 
HOUR 

COST PER 
MEETING 

NOTES 

Hourly Productive Rate 

and Use of Agenda 

Management System 

(AMS) 

$96.00 $192.00 w/ AMS 

$96.00 w/o AMS 

Hourly cost for use and 
maintenance of shared 
equipment and software 
and Clerk of the Board 
support activities. 

TSS – Customer Care $172.00 $344.00 Field support for set up 
and duration of 
meetings.  

CreaTV Meeting Crew  $105.00 $420.00 Two onsite camera 

operators. Vendor 

requires 2-hour 

minimum. 

CreaTV Production 

Coordinator 

$52.50 $52.50 Pre-production for 

graphics (Lower 

Third). Usually,  

1-hour per meeting. 

Dynamic Captioning  $90.00 $180.00 

 

Remote, real-time closed 

captioning production. 

Vendor requires 2-hour 

minimum. 

 
Cost Per Meeting – All Services: 

 

$1,118.50 

 

 
Cost Per Meeting – No AMS or Captioning: 

 

$842.50 

 

 

 

Note: The rates above are based on current pass-through costs for two-hour meetings.  LAFCO will be 

charged a standard per meeting rate, depending on the types of services utilized.  By June 15 of each 

fiscal year, Clerk of the Board will bill LAFCO based on the actual number of meetings held in the prior 

12 month period.  Payment is due by June 30.  LAFCO will be informed of any anticipated changes to 

estimated costs for the upcoming fiscal year by March 31. 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 0D7BAA3C-8963-46E2-82A0-7F2806A711C6DocuSign Envelope ID: A71433F1-4B2F-4E28-8453-0F3D648C8DCF



 
 

PAGE 1 OF 3 

ITEM # 11 

LAFCO MEETING: April 5, 2023 

TO:    LAFCO 

FROM:  Neelima Palacherla, Executive Officer  
   Dunia Noel, Asst. Executive Officer 
   Emmanuel Abello, Associate Analyst      

SUBJECT:  EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Accept reports and provide direction, as necessary. 

11.1 UPDATE ON LAFCO CLERK RECRUITMENT 
On February 7, 2023, the County of Santa Clara Board of Supervisors adopted a 
salary ordinance for the LAFCO Clerk position, allowing LAFCO to begin the long-
awaited LAFCO Clerk recruitment process. In March 2023, LAFCO staff resumed its 
work with County Executive Office staff and County Employee Services (ESA) staff 
by first reviewing the County’s draft job bulletin, which includes a supplemental 
questionnaire, and reviewing the proposed written exam for the position. LAFCO 
staff requested and County agreed to make some minor changes to these materials 
for overall clarity and emphasis on certain skills. It is anticipated that the LAFCO 
Clerk job announcement will be posted electronically at www.sccjobs.org soon, for a 
two-week period. The job announcement will also be posted on “Indeed,” a popular 
employment website for job listings. The announcement will also be posted on 
CALAFCO’s website and CALAFCO’s members and its partners will be notified about 
the recruitment. 

The County will then screen the applications and invite qualified candidates to take 
the written exam. Candidates that score at least 70% on the written exam will be 
placed on the eligible list and ranked based on how they score on the exam. LAFCO 
staff is allowed to interview the top ten highest-ranking candidates, including any 
candidates with tied scores. It is anticipated that these interviews will be held in 
May 2023, followed by an employment offer to one candidate. Assuming that the 
offer is accepted, the new LAFCO Clerk’s start date would be in late June/early July 
2023. 

LAFCO staff will continue to update the Commission, as the recruitment process 
moves forward. 

http://www.sccjobs.org/


PAGE 2 OF 3 

11.2 PRESENTATION ON LAFCO TO SANTA CLARA VALLEY OPEN SPACE 
AUTHORITY 

At the invitation of Alternate Commissioner Chapman, who also is a Director on the 
Santa Clara Valley Open Space District (OSA) Board of Directors, EO Palacherla gave 
a presentation on Santa Clara LAFCO at the joint meeting of the OSA’s Board of 
Directors and Citizens’ Advisory Committee, which was held on March 9, 2023. The 
30-minute presentation included an overview of LAFCO, a discussion on how 
LAFCO’s work to steer growth to areas where urban services can be delivered 
efficiently and to protect farmland and open space benefits the whole county, and 
how that work intersects with the mission of the Santa Clara Valley Open Space 
Authority.  

11.3 MEETING ON BAY AREA PEOPLE’S FOOD & FARM PROJECT 

At their request, LAFCO staff met with representatives of the Bay Area People’s Food 
& Farm Project (PFFP) on March 16, 2023. The PFFP is a “grass roots effort to 
address the fractures and inequities in our food system by building a participatory, 
community-led process to design a ‘People’s Food and Farm Bill’ that will create a 
public funding mechanism and establish a regional governmental entity for food 
that will be accountable to Bay Area residents.” At the meeting, LAFCO staff  
answered the group’s questions and encouraged them to more clearly articulate the 
specific services that the proposed new regional entity (serving the 9-County Bay 
Area) would provide. 

LAFCO staff first met with the group in 2021, at their request. The group informed 
staff of their plans, including their vision and exploration of potential governance 
options (i.e., creation of a joint powers authority or formation of a special district), 
and asked several questions. LAFCO staff advised the group on certain issues that 
they should consider and provided information on the process for forming a new 
special district. 

11.4 SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION MEETING 

Commissioner Kishimoto, Alternate Commissioner Chapman, and EO Palacherla 
attended the March 6, 2023 quarterly meeting of the Santa Clara County Special 
Districts Association (SDA) which was held by video conference.  

EO Palacherla provided updates on LAFCO activities, including LAFCO’s Countywide 
Fire Service Review and informed the group that at its April meeting, the 
Commission will consider a Workplan and Budget for FY 2024.  

The meeting also included a guest presentation from Jacelyn Ma (Division Manager, 
County of Santa Clara Controller-Treasurer’s Office) on Educational Revenue 
Augmentation Fund (ERAF) Distribution. Meeting attendees, including various 
district staff and board members, field staff for various state legislators, and a 
representative of the California Special Districts Association provided reports and 
shared information on current projects or issues of interest. The next meeting is 
scheduled for June 5, 2023.  



PAGE 3 OF 3 

11.5 LASERFISCHE SERVER MIGRATION SERVICES 

On February 21, 2023, EO Palacherla authorized services from ECS Imaging for 
LAFCO’s Laserfische server migration in an amount of $2,100. The server migration 
was required as the County Technology Support Services (TSS) was updating its 
servers including the one that hosts LAFCO’s electronic document management 
system on Laserfische. The County TSS requested that LAFCO seek technical support 
from ECS Imaging to implement the server migration as LAFCO has an existing 
licensing and technical support agreement with ECS Imaging. Please see 
Attachment A for a copy of the scope of services and payment details for the 
service. The FY 2023 LAFCO budget contains sufficient funds in the Consultant 
Services (GL 5255500) line item to cover this cost. 

At its April 3, 2019 meeting, the Commission adopted Resolution No. 2019-03, 
delegating authority to the LAFCO Executive Officer for execution of small contracts 
not to exceed $5,000 with prior LAFCO Counsel review and provided sufficient 
funds are contained in the appropriate line item in the LAFCO budget. Upon 
execution of such small contracts, the Executive Officer is required to report such 
action to the Commission at the next LAFCO Meeting. 

 

ATTACHMENT 

Attachment A: ECS Imaging Invoice, Scope of Services and Price Quote  

 

 





Invoice
Date

2/16/2023

Invoice #

17568

Bill To

Santa Clara County -LAFCO
Accounts Payable
777 North First Street, Suite 410
San Jose, CA 95112

Ship To

Santa Clara County -LAFCO
Emmanuel Abello
emmanuel.abello@ceo.sccgov.org

Project

Server Migration

P.O. Number Terms

Net 20 Days

Due Date

3/8/2023

Rep

Pete

Job# Rep Phone #

925-586-7549

Standard Processing Fee Added to all Credit Card Payments*

Total

Subtotal

Sales Tax (9.25%)

DescriptionQuantity Price Each AmountTaxable

ECS Professional Services1 2,100.00 2,100.00

Phone 951-787-8768 * Fax 951-787-0831
5905 Brockton Ave., Ste C * Riverside, CA 92506 * Sales@ecsimaging.com or helpdesk@ecsimaging.com

$2,100.00

$2,100.00

$0.00

ITEM # 11
Attachment A



ECS Imaging, Inc. – Scope of Services 

This information is confidential and proprietary to ECS Imaging, Incorporated. The intent is only for the customer and the 
information contained herein (the 'Proprietary Information') is highly confidential and proprietary to and constitutes trade secrets 
of ECS Imaging, Inc. This information shall not be published, communicated, disclosed, or divulged to any person, firm, corporation, 
or other legal entity, directly or indirectly, without the prior written consent of ECS Imaging, Inc. Management. 

1 

Scope Summary 
This implementation consists of the following: 

Professional Services 

Fixed Rate per Quote 

Solution Requirements 

1. Server Migration with Software Version Update (LF10 to LF11) (1 Server with 4 Client instances)

• Includes server migration and version update.

• Hardware Assessment and Recommendations (On Premise only)

• Hardware Performance Consultation (On Premise only)

• Implementation Checklists

• Laserfiche Documentation

o Minimum hardware/software specifications document (On Premise only)

o Recommended hardware/software specifications document (On Premise only)

o New feature training videos / documents

o New licensing comparison videos / documents

• Database and Volume Migration Support

o Volume data and SQL database migration recommendations

o Reestablish connections to database(s)

o Reestablish connections to volume(s)

• Go Live Support

• Post Installation Troubleshooting (Up to 5 business days after Go Live)

• Courtesy Advanced Scheduling for Reoccurring Future LF Updates

Services Include Standard Project Tasks 

1. Initiation and Planning
2. Implementation
3. Testing and Validation
4. Training
5. Project Management
6. Go Live Support

Organization Specific Tasks and Responsibilities 
For every implementation, there will be organization specific tasks and responsibilities necessary to 

complete this project.  These tasks and responsibilities include but are not limited to: 

• Provide appropriate hardware per ECS recommendations for the Laserfiche environment
o NOTE: Self-hosted only

• Provide VPN (unattended) or remote access (attended access) to the organization’s local
Laserfiche environment

o Laserfiche application server(s)
▪ Includes test environment(s), public facing DMZ server(s)



ECS Imaging, Inc. – Scope of Services 

This information is confidential and proprietary to ECS Imaging, Incorporated. The intent is only for the customer and the 
information contained herein (the 'Proprietary Information') is highly confidential and proprietary to and constitutes trade secrets 
of ECS Imaging, Inc. This information shall not be published, communicated, disclosed, or divulged to any person, firm, corporation, 
or other legal entity, directly or indirectly, without the prior written consent of ECS Imaging, Inc. Management. 

2 

o SQL server(s) (Laserfiche instance)
o Laserfiche repository and volume location(s)
o Source servers for database lookups, conversions, migrations
o Development workstation(s) (Conversions/migrations only)

• Provide network login credentials (AD account)
o Set login credentials to expire after the completion of the project

• Identify the primary contact for issues with login credentials

• Provide timely responses (within 3 business days) to communication requests from ECS for
business process requirements, solution revisions, solution testing, and solution sign off.

Project Duration 
The total project duration is dependent on several factors including but not limited to resource availability, 
a delay in requirements, hardware limitations, scheduling, and other factors from both ECS and the Client.  
The project duration will be assessed at the time of the needs assessment and the development of the 
detailed project plan. 

Solution Revision Limits 
Unless separate requirements are defined prior to the start of this implementation, this project has a limit 

of two (2) revision rounds for each business process.  A revision round is defined as follows: 

• Revisions to the business process solution that require a reassessment of the business process
function itself (i.e., Adding a new approval branch to a routing workflow)

• Revisions to the business process solution that require a functional change in how the solution is
designed (i.e., Modifying a LF form with JavaScript to satisfy custom formatting)

Items Out of Scope 
The scope of this project does not include the following: 

• ECS acquisition of server or workstation hardware

• Costs associated with troubleshooting OS or hardware issues related to the workstations or
servers

• Resolving any issues not related to Laserfiche, including but not limited to Windows permissions,
network permissions, network hardware, server or client hardware, or other 3rd party
infrastructure hardware or software

• Resolving issues caused by unauthorized changes made by Client staff on the ECS-built solution(s)
in active development. Client agrees to seek and receive approval by the Client and ECS Imaging,
Inc. project team stakeholders prior to any changes to an ECS-built solution until handoff of the
solution to the Client has been completed.

• Any services not explicitly defined in the statement of services

*Any items out of scope will be considered as separate labor from the services agreed upon for this project
and may require additional approval and review before proceeding.  The project’s primary requirements
take precedence over any additional items requested that are out of scope to maintain the project
timeline and ensure deliverable expectations are met.



ECS Imaging, Inc. – Scope of Services 

This information is confidential and proprietary to ECS Imaging, Incorporated. The intent is only for the customer and the 
information contained herein (the 'Proprietary Information') is highly confidential and proprietary to and constitutes trade secrets 
of ECS Imaging, Inc. This information shall not be published, communicated, disclosed, or divulged to any person, firm, corporation, 
or other legal entity, directly or indirectly, without the prior written consent of ECS Imaging, Inc. Management. 

 

3 

Project Go-Live Support 
Unless separate terms are defined prior to the start of this implementation, this project has a standard 
go-live support period of 30 calendar days from the time the project solution goes live in your production 
environment.  During this time, the project team responsible for the implementation will be available to 
assist with any concerns.  At the end of this 30-calendar day period, the project will be subject to closeout.  
Any subsequent concerns will be handled through our support helpdesk and charged against your support 
agreement. 

Payment Milestones 
Unless separate terms are defined prior to the start of this implementation, this project has a standard 
payment milestone schedule of 50% due upon project initiation with remaining services as incurred.  

 



Phone:

951-787-

8768

Fax: 951-

787-0831

Quote

Quotation For Quote Info Q4 2022 V.2

Name: Date: 12/23/2022

Title: Quote Number: 122320221

Company: Valid Through 1/31/2023

Address: Terms: net 20

Phone: Account Manager: Pete H

E-mail: Phone: (925)586-7549

E-mail: pete@ecsimaging.com

Description of Product and Services

Products and Services
SKU Unit Price Quantity Line Total

2,100.00$     1 2,100.00$    

Subtotal 2,100.00$      

Special Terms

Subtotal 2,100.00$      

Tax Rate 0.00% Tax -$       

Shipping -$       

Billing Terms Total 2,100.00$      

877-790-1600

5905 Brockton Ave. Ste. C 

Riverside, CA 92506     

www.ECSImaging.com

ECS Professional Services

ECS Imaging, Inc.

5905 Brockton Ave, Suite C

Riverside CA, 92506

Description

Laserfiche Server Migration and Update to latest software version.

Emmanuel Abello

Commission Clerk

Santa Clara County LAFCO

777 North First Street, Suite 410, San Jose, CA 95112

(408) 993-4705

emmanuel.abello@ceo.sccgov.org

Software Only (Download Only)

*Hardware, Software, Maintenance, Gold Hours & Projects billed 100% at project start. *Services billed 50% up front minimally w/ remaining Services as incurred." 

*Standard Processing fee added to credit card payments."

mailto:emmanuel.abello@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:emmanuel.abello@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:pete@ecsimaging.com
mailto:emmanuel.abello@ceo.sccgov.org




 
 

PAGE 1 OF 1 

ITEM # 12  

LAFCO MEETING: April  5, 2023 

TO:    LAFCO 

FROM:  Neelima Palacherla, Executive Officer  
   Dunia Noel, Asst. Executive Officer     

SUBJECT: APPOINTMENT OF 2023 LAFCO CHAIRPERSON AND 
VICE-CHAIRPERSON 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION  
Appoint a commissioner to serve as Chairperson for 2023 and appoint a 
commissioner to serve as Vice-Chairperson for 2023. 

BACKGROUND 
Pursuant to the LAFCO Bylaws, the rotation schedule for Chairperson and Vice 
Chairperson is as follows unless otherwise determined by the Commission: 

• Cities member 
• County member 
• San Jose member 
• Special Districts member 
• County member 
• Public member 
• Special Districts member 

However, the Commission has deviated from the adopted chair rotation schedule in 
the past to allow new commissioners adequate time to gain knowledge and 
experience on LAFCO matters, before serving as LAFCO Chairperson. 

Appointment of the LAFCO Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson is typically made on a 
calendar year basis, usually at the December LAFCO meeting. The appointment of a 
2023 Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson was delayed to the April 5, 2023 LAFCO 
Meeting to allow for LAFCO to have a fully seated Commission.  

Commissioner Susan Vicklund Wilson, long-serving Public Member, is provisional 
Chairperson for 2023. However, Commissioner Vicklund Wilson’s term on LAFCO 
ends in May 2023. 





ITEM # 16 




	1. ROLL CALL
	2. LAFCO MEMBERSHIP CHANGES
	Staff Report

	3. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	4. APPROVE CONSENT CALENDAR
	*5. APPROVE MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 1, 2023 LAFCO MEETING
	Minutes

	6. GILROY URBAN SERVICE AREA AMENDMENT 2021 (WREN INVESTORS & HEWELL)
	Staff Report
	Supp. Info. No. 1
	Supp. Info. No. 2
	Request for Continuance by the City of Gilroy
	Joint Comment by Environmental Groups


	7. PROPOSED WORK PLAN AND BUDGET FOR FY 2024
	Staff Report
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E


	8. APPOINTMENT OF PUBLIC MEMBER AND ALTERNATE PUBLIC MEMBER
	Staff Report
	Attachment A
	Attachment B - Applicants
	Jane Howard
	Jerry Karp
	Teresa O'Neill
	Jake Torkel
	Terry A. Trumbull



	9. UPDATE ON COUNTYWIDE FIRE SERVICE REVIEW
	Staff Report

	*10. AMENDMENT TO MOU BETWEEN COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA AND LAFCO OF SANTA CLARA REGARDING WEBCASTING SERVICES FOR LAFCO MEETINGS
	Staff Report
	Attachment A
	Attachment B


	11. EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
	11.1 UPDATE ON LAFCO CLERK RECRUITMENT
	11.2 PRESENTATION ON LAFCO TO SANTA CLARA VALLEY OPEN SPACEAUTHORITY
	11.3 MEETING ON BAY AREA PEOPLE’S FOOD & FARM PROJECT
	11.4 SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION MEETING
	11.5 LASERFISCHE SERVER MIGRATION SERVICES
	Attachment A


	12. APPOINTMENT OF 2023 LAFCO CHAIRPERSON AND VICE-CHAIRPERSON
	Staff Report

	13. PENDING APPLICATIONS / UPCOMING PROJECTS
	14. COMMISSIONER REPORTS
	15. NEWSPAPER ARTICLES / NEWSLETTERS
	16. WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE
	Correspondence

	17. ADJOURN



